
 

Agenda - Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a 

Seilwaith 
Lleoliad: 

Hybrid – Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 Senedd a  

fideogynadledd drwy Zoom  

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 24 Mai 2023 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Marc Wyn Jones 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat (09.15-09.30)  

Cyfarfod cyhoeddus (09.30 – 11.30)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau. 

(09.30)   

 

2 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - 

tystiolaeth gan y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd: rhan 1 

(09.30-10.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 30)  

Julie James AS, y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

Olwen Spiller, Dirprwy Bennaeth Diogelu'r Amgylchedd - Llywodraeth Cymru 

Roger Herbert, Pennaeth Monitro, Tystiolaeth ac Asesu Ansawdd Aer - 

Llywodraeth Cymru 

Helen Rowley, Cyfreithiwr – Llywodraeth Cymru 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur briffio gan Ymchwil y Senedd - Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a 

Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

Canfyddiadau’r arolwg - Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) 

(Cymru) 

Egwyl (10.30-10.40)  

 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



3 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - 

tystiolaeth gan y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd: rhan 2 

(10.40-11.30)   

Julie James AS, y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

Olwen Spiller, Dirprwy Bennaeth Diogelu'r Amgylchedd - Llywodraeth Cymru 

Roger Herbert, Pennaeth Monitro, Tystiolaeth ac Asesu Ansawdd Aer - 

Llywodraeth Cymru 

Helen Rowley, Cyfreithiwr – Llywodraeth Cymru 

 

4 Papurau i'w nodi 

(11.30)   

 

4.1 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

 (Tudalennau 31 - 37)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Gyfarwyddwr y Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol (RCN) Cymru at y 

Cadeirydd mewn perthynas â Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) 

(Cymru) 

4.2 Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau y DU 

 (Tudalennau 38 - 42)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd mewn perthynas â’r 

fframwaith cyffredin dros dro ar gyfer Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau y DU 

4.3 Gwefru Cerbydau Trydan 

 (Tudalennau 43 - 121)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Ymateb gan Lywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar strategaeth a 

chynllun gweithredu seilwaith gwefru cerbydau trydan (Saesneg yn unig) 

4.4 Tata Steel - Datgarboneiddio'r diwydiant dur 

 (Tudalennau 122 - 123)  

Dogfennau atodol: 



Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros Fusnes a Masnach 

mewn perthynas â Tata Steel a datgarboneiddio'r diwydiant dur (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

4.5 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm Rhif 3) ar 

gyfer y Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio 

 (Tudalennau 124 - 125)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai at y Llywydd mewn 

perthynas â’r Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm 

Rhif 3) ar gyfer y Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio 

4.6 Fframweithiau cyffredin 

 (Tudalen 126)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad 

mewn cysylltiad ag adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar Fframweithiau Cyffredin 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) a (ix) i benderfynu gwahardd 

y cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod heddiw. 

(11.30)   

 

Cyfarfod preifat (11.30-12.15)  

 

6 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - trafod y 

dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law o dan eitem 2 ac eitem 3 

   

 

7 Trafod y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol ar y Bil 

Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio 

 (Tudalennau 127 - 132)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Nodyn cyfreithiol (Saesneg yn unig) 



8 Trafod yr amserlen arfaethedig ar gyfer Bil Seilwaith (Cymru) 

 (Tudalennau 133 - 136)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan y Pwyllgor Busnes mewn perthynas â Bil Seilwaith (Cymru). 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Arolwg Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fel rhan o waith craffu Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr 

Amgylchedd a Seilwaith y Senedd ar Fil yr Amgylchedd 

(Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) (y Bil), cynhaliwyd arolwg 

i gasglu barn pobl ledled Cymru.  

Yr arolwg 

1. Roedd arolwg safonedig a strwythuredig, y gallai cyfranogwyr ei lenwi eu hunain, ar agor 

am tua chwe wythnos rhwng dydd Llun 3 Ebrill a dydd Llun 8 Mai 2023. Roedd yr arolwg ar gael 

i'w lenwi ar-lein. 

2. Cafodd yr arolwg ei hyrwyddo drwy nifer o sianeli, gan gynnwys sianeli’r Senedd ar y 

cyfryngau cymdeithasol.   

3. Roedd yr arolwg yn gofyn pum cwestiwn am y darpariaethau yn y Bil sy’n ymwneud â 

chynlluniau codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr ffyrdd. Rhoddwyd rhywfaint o wybodaeth i'r ymatebwyr am 

yr hyn y bydd y darpariaethau hyn ei wneud a’r gyfraith bresennol o ran cynlluniau codi tâl ar 

ddefnyddwyr ffyrdd.  

4. Roedd yr arolwg hwn yn gyfle i bobl ar hyd a lled Cymru roi eu barn am rai o brif 

ddarpariaethau’r Bil. 

Senedd Cymru  

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Canfyddiadau’r arolwg 

Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a 

Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

Mai 2023   

www.senedd.cymru Tudalen y pecyn 24



Arolwg Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

2 

 

1. Canfyddiadau 

5. Daeth 2,239 o ymatebion i law. 

6. Cafwyd ymatebion o bob awdurdod lleol, gyda’r nifer fwyaf o ymatebion yn dod o 

Gaerdydd a Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

 

7. O'r 2239 o bobl a gymerodd ran yn yr arolwg, roedd 92% yn anghytuno y dylai 

Llywodraeth Cymru gael pwerau ehangach i gyflwyno cynlluniau codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr 

cefnffyrdd i fynd i'r afael â llygredd aer o amgylch cefnffyrdd. Roedd 85% o'r ymatebwyr yn 

anghytuno'n gryf. 

45

102
110

242

157

50 48

60

144

33
39

53

75

123

156

72

53

236

160

104

89

69

19

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Awdurdodau Lleol

Blaenau Gwent Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr Caerffili Caerdydd

Sir Gaerfyrddin Ceredigion Conwy Sir Ddinbych

Sir y Fflint Gwynedd Ynys Môn Merthyr Tudful

Sir Fynwy Castell-nedd Port Talbot Casnewydd Sir Benfro

Powys Rhondda Cynon Taf Abertawe Torfaen

Bro Morgannwg Wrecsam Tu allan i Gymru

Tudalen y pecyn 25



Arolwg Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

3 

 

 

8. Roedd 93% o’r ymatebwyr o’r farn ei bod yn hanfodol y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru orfod 

ymgynghori â'r cyhoedd cyn cyflwyno cynlluniau codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr cefnffyrdd, a 

dywedodd 4% yn rhagor o’r ymatebwyr ei fod yn bwysig. 

9. Dywedodd 1% o’r ymatebwyr nad yw’n bwysig i Lywodraeth Cymru ymgynghori â’r 

cyhoedd cyn cyflwyno cynlluniau codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr cefnffyrdd. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



Arolwg Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

4 

 

 

10. Dywedodd 92% o'r ymatebwyr nad oeddent yn cefnogi’r darpariaethau yn y 

Bil i godi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr ffyrdd o ran egwyddor. 

11. Roedd gweddill yr ymatebion yn gyfartal o ran y darpariaethau yn y Bil i godi tâl ar 

ddefnyddwyr ffyrdd, gyda 2% yn eu cefnogi i raddau, 2% yn dweud nad oeddent yn eu cefnogi 

nac yn eu gwrthwynebu, 2% yn eu cefnogi, a 2% yn eu cefnogi'n gryf. 

12. Roedd 61% o’r ymatebwyr yn anghytuno y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru orfod 

defnyddio’r cyllid a gynhyrchir gan gynlluniau codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr cefnffyrdd, 

a gyflwynwyd i leihau llygredd aer, i ariannu polisïau i leihau llygredd aer. Roedd yr 

ymatebion yn fwy cyfartal ar draws yr opsiynau gwahanol. 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



Arolwg Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

5 

 

 

13. Gwahoddwyd yr ymatebwyr i esbonio eu barn am y Bil. Rhoddodd 1,866 o ymatebwyr eu 

barn am y Bil. O'r rhai a rannodd eu barn, roedd 93% yn erbyn y Bil a 6% o blaid y Bil. 

14. Roedd y rhai a oedd o blaid y Bil yn teimlo bod angen y Bil, o ran egwyddor, i wella 

ansawdd aer. 

‘O safbwynt llygredd aer a newid yn yr hinsawdd rwy'n cytuno'n gryf â'r syniad. Ond rhaid 

cynnig dewis arall er mwyn sicrhau mynediad. Efallai fod angen cynnal treial mewn ardal 

lygredig iawn.’ 

 

‘Rwy'n credu ei bod yn hanfodol bwysig bod llywodraethau yn deall yr her hon i wella 

ansawdd aer nawr, er mwyn diogelu iechyd pobl sy'n byw mewn dinasoedd a ger ffyrdd 

668

137

528

201

705

A ydych chi'n cytuno ynteu'n anghytuno y dylai Llywodraeth 

Cymru orfod defnyddio'r cyllid a gynhyrchir gan gynlluniau codi 

tâl ar ddefnyddwyr cefnffyrdd, a gyflwynir i leihau llygredd aer, 

er mwyn ariannu polisïau i leihau llygredd aer? 

Anghytuno'n gryf 30% Anghytuno 6%

Ddim yn cytuno nac yn anghytuno 24% Cytuno 9%

Anghytuno'n gryf 31%

Tudalen y pecyn 28



Arolwg Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

6 

mawr. Rwyf wedi nodi yn yr arolwg fy mod yn credu ei bod yn hanfodol ymgynghori â'r 

cyhoedd, ond rwyf hefyd o’r farn y dylid trin canlyniad ymgynghoriad o'r fath fel cyngor yn 

unig.’ 

15. Fodd bynnag, roedd mwyafrif llethol y sylwadau gan ymatebwyr yn amlwg yn erbyn y Bil. 

Roedd llawer o'r ymatebwyr yn ddig am effaith ariannol bosibl y Bil ar gostau byw pobl a'r 

pwysau ariannol posibl y gallai'r Bil ei roi ar y cyhoedd sy'n gweithio. 

‘Mae’n syniad hollol wallgof codi tâl ar bobl i ddefnyddio’r ffyrdd sydd wedi'u cynllunio i 

dynnu traffig oddi ar y ffyrdd llai, pan ydych chi’n gwneud i bobl yrru ar ffyrdd llai mewn 

gwirionedd. Nid yw pobl Cymru eisiau hyn na'r gostyngiadau arfaethedig i derfynau 

cyflymder. Mae'r ddarpariaeth trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus yn y cymoedd yn annibendod llwyr. 

Mae'r syniad hwn yn rhoi treth ar rai o'r bobl dlotaf yn Ewrop. Rwy'n byw yn Nhredegar ond 

yn gweithio ym Mrynbuga, sy’n daith o bedwar bws bob ffordd – eglurwch sut mae hynny'n 

ymarferol.’ 

 

‘Gyda phrisiau tanwydd yn dal i fod yn uchel, byddai cyflwyno'r Bil hwn yn niweidiol iawn i 

bobl sydd angen teithio i'w swyddi bob dydd. Bydd hefyd yn gorfodi llawer o bobl oddi ar y 

ffordd gan ei bod yn gostus iawn cadw car. Cyn hyd yn oed gyflwyno Bil fel hyn, byddwn yn 

awgrymu eich bod yn canolbwyntio ar sicrhau bod trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus yn cyrraedd safon 

dderbyniol yn gyntaf. Fel enghraifft yn fy nghymuned leol, maen nhw'n atal pob gwasanaeth 

bws ym mis Mehefin. Mae'n rhaid i mi deithio 27 milltir y dydd i’r gwaith, felly pe bawn i'n cael 

fy ngorfodi oddi ar y ffordd oherwydd y costau ychwanegol hyn byddai'n rhaid i mi roi'r 

gorau i'm swydd.’ 

 

‘Mae codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr ffyrdd yn syniad sydd wedi cael ei gynnig ers tro gan nifer 

gymharol fach o ymgyrchwyr a chynllunwyr ond sydd heb lawer o gefnogaeth ymhlith y 

cyhoedd. Dylid parchu dewis unigol, yn hytrach na cheisio gorfodi pobl i ddefnyddio 

trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus, sy’n araf ac yn annibynadwy, drwy fynd ati i wneud modura yn 

ddrytach ac yn llai cyfleus. Mae cyllidebau aelwydydd eisoes dan bwysau oherwydd 

chwyddiant a dirwasgiad, a bydd codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr ffyrdd yn achosi caledi i fodurwyr 

incwm isel yn anghymesur, gan eu gorfodi i wneud dewisiadau anodd neu aros oddi ar y 

ffordd yn llwyr tra bydd pobl mwy cefnog yn gallu fforddio parhau i deithio fel y mynnant. 

Mae codi tâl ar ddefnyddwyr ffyrdd yn ymosodiad ar ein safon byw, ein rhyddid i ddewis a’n 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



Arolwg Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) 

7 

rhyddid i deithio a bydd yn arwain pobl i ymateb yn erbyn y gwleidyddion sy'n gyfrifol yn y 

blwch pleidleisio.’ 

 

‘Mae'r Bil mor amwys, nid yw'n dweud wrthym beth fydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn ei wneud. 

Maen nhw'n dweud nad oes ganddyn nhw gynlluniau i gyflwyno tâl ond rydyn ni'n gwybod y 

byddan nhw’n gwneud hynny. Mae'r Bil hwn yn golygu y gallant wneud hyn heb orfod 

ymgynghori â ni, y cyhoedd. Mae hynny'n anfoesegol. Gwnaethom ni ddim pleidleisio dros 

hyn felly mae'n RHAID iddyn nhw ymgynghori. Fel arall, byddwn ni’n gweld y problemau sy'n 

digwydd yn Lloegr yn digwydd fan hyn.’ 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
16 May 2023 
 
Llyr Gruffydd MS 
Chair, Climate change, Environment and Infrastructure 

Committee  

Welsh Parliament 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff  CF99 1SN 
 

Dear Chair 

 

I am writing to you regarding the Environmental (Air Quality and Soundscape) 

(Wales) Bill.  

 

The Royal College of Nursing (RCN) Wales welcomes the introduction of the 

Environmental (Air Quality and Soundscape) (Wales) Bill and supports the overall 

aim. The ambition of the Bill to reduce the impact of air pollution on human health, 

biodiversity, the natural environment, and the economy could have a significant 

positive impact on future generations, and their health.  

 

However, RCN Wales would welcome your support, and the support of the Climate 

Change, Environment, and Infrastructure Committee, in exploring if it’s possible to 

include a duty on health boards within the Bill to improve indoor air quality, to protect 

vulnerable patients and staff.  

 

There is a need to adapt and change our internal healthcare environments to 

improve air quality. COVID-19 highlighted the susceptibility of the NHS estate to 

respiratory illnesses and the importance of ventilation, and good air quality. 

 

Continued…. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Royal College of Nursing 
Ty Maeth 
King George V Drive East 
Cardiff   
CF14 4XZ 
 
Helen Whyley, RN, MA  
Director, RCN Wales 
Telephone   02920 680703 
Email  helen.whyley@rcn.org.uk 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 31

Eitem 4.1

mailto:helen.whyley@rcn.org.uk


 
 

RCN Wales published a parliamentary briefing, Open the Window, last year 

regarding the importance of ventilation which I have attached for your information. 

 

COVID-19 has highlighted the need for improvement in air quality within the NHS 

estate, but it is not the only example.  Another example comes from a number of 

NHS England Trusts that temporarily halted the use of Nitrous Oxide, ‘laughing gas’ 

earlier this year, following concerns that clinical staff were being exposed to harmful 

levels while treating patients.1 This is largely due to poor ventilation within delivery 

suits. Before Watford General Hospital installed air purifiers, it reportedly 

experienced levels 50 times above Nitrous Oxide safety caps last year. This caused 

unwarranted harm and concern for both patients and staff. While there has been no 

indication that this is a problem in Wales, it is a contemporary example of the real 

concerns regarding a lack of efficient ventilation.  

 

There is existing guidance in place for ventilation within the NHS, but there is no 

statutory duty to ensure ‘good’ air quality within indoor settings. The current guidance 

should be strengthened through legislative requirements. The NHS capital estate 

budget has been reduced year after year and the NHS estate is suffering as a result. 

There are millions of pounds worth of repairs needed, on top of an investment in 

ventilation and air quality system to ensure Wales is protected from future respiratory 

illnesses and pandemics. The guidance and NHS Wales Shared Services need 

support and investment, a keyway to do this is through a legislative duty.  

 

The Bill, as introduced, details it will be ‘an Act of Senedd Cymru to make provision 

for improving air quality in Wales’. This should not be limited to outdoor air quality but 

should seek to improve indoor air quality. 

 

I would welcome your support in exploring if it’s possible to include a duty on health 

boards within the Bill to improve indoor air quality, to protect vulnerable patients and 

staff.  

 

I look forward to your response.  

 

Kind regard 

 

Your sincerely 

 

 

 

 

HELEN WHYLEY, RN, MA                                          

DIRECTOR, RCN WALES                               

 
1 Evening Standard, 2023. Available at:https://www.standard.co.uk/news/uk/hospitals-suspend-
gas-and-air-for-mothersto-be-over-midwife-safety-b1063188.html  

Tudalen y pecyn 32

https://www.standard.co.uk/news/uk/hospitals-suspend-gas-and-air-for-mothersto-be-over-midwife-safety-b1063188.html
https://www.standard.co.uk/news/uk/hospitals-suspend-gas-and-air-for-mothersto-be-over-midwife-safety-b1063188.html


 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â: Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk   1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cydnabod bod COVID-19 yn cael ei ledaenu drwy gael ei 

drosglwyddo trwy’r awyr, cysylltiad agos trwy ddefnynnau ac arwynebau. Mae 

trosglwyddo trwy’r awyr yn ffordd arwyddocaol iawn i’r feirws gylchredeg.12 Mae 

tystiolaeth sy'n awgrymu bod lledaeniad COVID-19 yn uwch mewn mannau lle ceir 

awyru gwael.  

 

Mae angen addasu a newid ein hamgylcheddau gofal iechyd mewnol er mwyn lleihau 

effaith COVID-19 a chlefydau eraill a drosglwyddir drwy’r awyr. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru 

wedi sefydlu systemau ar gyfer lleoliadau addysg i wella awyru a monitro ansawdd aer3. 

Mae angen i Lywodraeth Cymru ymrwymo yn awr i wneud hyn ar gyfer lleoliadau iechyd. 

 
1 Coronafeirws: how to stay safe and help prevent the spread - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
2 https://llyw.cymru/diogelu-cymru-gydan-gilydd 
3 https://llyw.cymru/dechrau-newydd-i-dymor-newydd-gyda-buddsoddiad-i-helpu-i-wella-ansawdd-yr-aer-   
mewn-ysgolion-colegau 
 

Agorwch y ffenestr 
Pam y mae angen i Lywodraeth Cymru fuddsoddi mewn awyru 

ar gyfer Ystad GIG Cymru 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 33

mailto:Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk
http://Coronafeirws:%20how%20to%20stay%20safe%20and%20help%20prevent%20the%20spread%20-%20GOV.UK%20(www.gov.uk)
https://llyw.cymru/diogelu-cymru-gydan-gilydd
https://llyw.cymru/dechrau-newydd-i-dymor-newydd-gyda-buddsoddiad-i-helpu-i-wella-ansawdd-yr-aer-mewn-ysgolion-colegau
https://llyw.cymru/dechrau-newydd-i-dymor-newydd-gyda-buddsoddiad-i-helpu-i-wella-ansawdd-yr-aer-mewn-ysgolion-colegau


 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â: Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk   2 
 

Bydd y ddogfen hon yn canolbwyntio ar awyru o fewn ystad y GIG. Fodd bynnag, rydym 

yn cydnabod bod awyru mewn lleoliadau gofal cymdeithasol yr un mor bwysig ac mae 

angen buddsoddi a gweithredu. 

 

Beth yw awyru a pham y mae'n bwysig?  

Awyru yw'r broses o ddisodli hen aer ag awyr iach. Gellir gwneud hyn yn naturiol, drwy 

agor ffenestr, neu'n fecanyddol, drwy system awyru gan ddefnyddio gwyntyllau a 

dwythellau.  

 

Defnyddir awyru mewn lleoliadau iechyd a gofal i ddarparu amgylchedd diogel a 

chyfforddus i gleifion. Darperir awyru mwy arbenigol i helpu i leihau'r risg o heintio drwy'r 

awyr mewn lleoliadau fel adrannau llawdriniaethau, cyfleusterau gofal critigol, 

ystafelloedd ynysu ac ardaloedd triniaeth sylfaenol i gleifion.4 

 

Mae adeiladau gofal iechyd yn cael eu defnyddio gan gleifion a staff yn barhaus ac mewn 

modd dwys ac oherwydd natur arbenigol y cyfleusterau gall fod yn anodd iawn darparu'r 

gwasanaeth mewn mannau eraill. 

 

Mae awyru'n bwysig wrth reoli lledaeniad clefydau drwy’r awyr, megis COVID-19. Gan 

fod SARS-CoV-2 (y feirws sy'n achosi COVID-19) yn berygl biolegol Grŵp 3, mae 

cyflogwyr y GIG yn atebol o dan gyfraith iechyd a diogelwch, yn benodol Rheoli 

Sylweddau Peryglus i iechyd (COSHH) i asesu a rheoli'r risg o gysylltiad ymhlith staff 

gofal iechyd. Mae'r RCN wedi datblygu pecyn cymorth Asesu Risg i gefnogi cyflogwyr a 

staff i reoli'r risg o COVID-19 yn y gweithle.5 

 

Gan ei fod yn bathogen a drosglwyddir drwy’r awyr, mae risg o haint hefyd i gleifion, ac 

os caiff cleifion eu heintio o ganlyniad uniongyrchol i ofal, caiff ei ddosbarthu fel haint 

sy'n gysylltiedig â gofal iechyd. 

 
4 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HTM0301-PartA-accessible-F6.pdf  
5 https://www.rcn.org.uk/clinical-topics/infection-prevention-and-control/covid-19-workplace-risk-
assessment-toolkit  

Argymhellion ar gyfer Llywodraeth Cymru 

 

1. Sefydlu cynllun buddsoddi hirdymor ar gyfer gwella awyru ar draws ystad y 

GIG. Fel cam cychwynnol, dylai hyn gynnwys asesu ansawdd aer presennol 

drwy'r cyllid dros dro ar gyfer monitorau CO2. 

2. Buddsoddi mewn nyrsys ymgynghorol yng Nghymru i gefnogi'r gwaith o 

ddiweddaru'r ystad a chefnogi gwaith atal a rheoli heintiau. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 34

mailto:Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HTM0301-PartA-accessible-F6.pdf
https://www.rcn.org.uk/clinical-topics/infection-prevention-and-control/covid-19-workplace-risk-assessment-toolkit
https://www.rcn.org.uk/clinical-topics/infection-prevention-and-control/covid-19-workplace-risk-assessment-toolkit


 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â: Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk   3 
 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cydnabod pwysigrwydd awyru fel un agwedd ar reoli risg 

heintiau a drosglwyddir drwy’r awyr 

 

Beth yw'r system awyru bresennol? 

Mae gan lawer o adeiladau'r GIG gynteddau cul, ystafelloedd bach a ffenestri na ellir eu 
hagor, sy’n dileu'r posibilrwydd o awyru naturiol. Felly, mae'r GIG yn dibynnu ar awyru 
mecanyddol ac os yw'n bresennol mae’n bosibl nad yw wedi'i ddiweddaru ers nifer o 
flynyddoedd. 
 
Mae’r Gwasanaeth Ystadau Arbenigol wedi darparu dogfen gyda chyfres o ganllawiau ar 
gyfer awyru a gyhoeddwyd yn ystod pandemig COVID-19.6 Mae hon yn cynnwys yr 
Awdurdod Gweithredol Iechyd a Diogelwch sydd wedi cyhoeddi canllawiau i helpu 
sefydliadau i nodi ardaloedd sydd wedi'u hawyru'n wael, i benderfynu ar y camau i'w 
cymryd i wella awyru ac i asesu'r risg o fewnanadlu gronynnau feirws (trosglwyddo trwy 
aerosol) mewn ardaloedd caeedig.7 
 
Mae’r canllawiau yn gosod safon glir i Fyrddau Iechyd anelu ati ac maent yn cynnig 
cymorth i asesu a rheoli awyru. Fodd bynnag, hyd y gwyddom ni nid oes fframwaith 
cenedlaethol i fonitro a yw asesiadau'n cael eu cwblhau a pha gamau sy'n cael eu 
cymryd i wella'r sefyllfa yng Nghymru. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru sicrhau bod systemau 
ar waith i weithredu ar wybodaeth am awyru gwael a darparu buddsoddiad pe bai angen. 
 
Er mwyn deall a yw'r systemau awyru yn ystad y GIG yn ddigonol i leihau gallu afiechydon 
i drosglwyddo trwy’r awyr a lleihau ansawdd aer gwael, mae'n bwysig bod data'n cael eu 
casglu drwy ddefnyddio monitorau CO2 yn y lle cyntaf.  
 

Pam y mae monitorau CO2 yn bwysig? 

Mae pobl yn allanadlu carbon deuocsid 

(CO2) pan fyddant yn allanadlu. Gall 

croniad o CO2 mewn ardal fod yn arwydd o 

awyru gwael. Mae monitorau CO2 yn 

ddangoswyr drwy brocsi defnyddiol i 

amlygu a oes angen gwella awyru naturiol 

a/neu fecanyddol.  

 

Yn 2021 buddsoddodd Llywodraeth Cymru 

£2.58 miliwn mewn 30,000 o fonitorau 

CO2 ar gyfer lleoliadau addysg i helpu i 

reoli systemau awyru (fel y gwelir yn y llun).  

 
6 https://nwssp.nhs.wales/ourservices/specialist-estates-services/specialist-estates-services-
documents/specialist-estates-services-notifications-sesns/sesn-21-16-covid-19-and-mitigating-airborne-
transmission-in-healthcare-settings-ventilation-guidance-updates/ 
7 https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/equipment-and-machinery/air-conditioning-and-ventilation/index.htm  

Tudalen y pecyn 35

mailto:Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk
https://nwssp.nhs.wales/ourservices/specialist-estates-services/specialist-estates-services-documents/specialist-estates-services-notifications-sesns/sesn-21-16-covid-19-and-mitigating-airborne-transmission-in-healthcare-settings-ventilation-guidance-updates/
https://nwssp.nhs.wales/ourservices/specialist-estates-services/specialist-estates-services-documents/specialist-estates-services-notifications-sesns/sesn-21-16-covid-19-and-mitigating-airborne-transmission-in-healthcare-settings-ventilation-guidance-updates/
https://nwssp.nhs.wales/ourservices/specialist-estates-services/specialist-estates-services-documents/specialist-estates-services-notifications-sesns/sesn-21-16-covid-19-and-mitigating-airborne-transmission-in-healthcare-settings-ventilation-guidance-updates/
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/equipment-and-machinery/air-conditioning-and-ventilation/index.htm


 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â: Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk   4 
 

Mae gwahanol fathau o ddyfeisiau CO2 cludadwy ond y mwyaf effeithiol yw monitor CO2 

isgoch nad yw'n gwasgaru (NDIR). Dyma'r math y mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi'i ariannu 

ar gyfer lleoliadau addysg. 

 

Yn y canllawiau ar ddefnyddio monitorau CO2 mewn lleoliadau addysg mae’n egluro bod 

'y ddyletswydd yn y gyfraith [Deddf Iechyd a Diogelwch yn y Gwaith etc 1974] i gymryd 

camau rhesymol yn gyfrifoldeb ar y person neu'r personau sy'n gyfrifol am fangreoedd 

sy'n agored i'r cyhoedd ac ar y person sy'n gyfrifol am y gwaith sy'n cael ei wneud mewn 

unrhyw weithle; hynny yw, y person sy'n gyfrifol am reoli'r safle'. Mae gan y rhai sy'n rheoli 

safleoedd (penaethiaid, prif weithredwyr, perchnogion cartrefi gofal ac ati) gyfrifoldeb i 

sicrhau bod lefelau da o awyru'n cael eu cynnal. 
 

Pam y mae nyrsys ymgynghorol yn bwysig ar gyfer gwella awyru? 

Mae gan nyrsys ymgynghorol swyddi ar lefel uchel iawn. Mae eu swyddogaeth yn 

cwmpasu ymarfer clinigol, addysg, ymchwil ac arweinyddiaeth glinigol. Mae nyrsys 

ymgynghorol atal a rheoli heintiau (IPC) yn darparu gwybodaeth ac arweiniad arbenigol i 

fyrddau iechyd. Fel arweinwyr 'system', mae nyrsys ymgynghorol IPC yn ystyried dull 

cyfannol o atal heintiau, gan weithredu fel pont rhwng iechyd y cyhoedd, diogelu iechyd 

a gwyddoniaeth. 

 

Byddai buddsoddi mewn nyrsys ymgynghorol IPC yn  sicrhau bod gan Gymru yr 

adnoddau i ddarparu gwybodaeth arbenigol ar draws systemau; byddai hefyd yn sicrhau 

bod gan Gymru yr adnoddau i addysgu'r genhedlaeth nesaf o weithwyr iechyd 

proffesiynol. Byddai'r swyddi hyn hefyd yn hwyluso rhannu arbenigedd ar lefel uwch ar 

draws ffiniau cenedlaethol. Byddai hyn yn codi statws nyrsio IPC a chyfraniad Cymru 

ato. Mae buddsoddi mewn ymgynghorwyr nyrsio IPC yn fuddsoddiad yn y system gyfan 

gan osod atal a rheoli heintiau yn briodol wrth wraidd iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol.  

 

Beth all Llywodraeth Cymru ei wneud? 

Mae angen buddsoddiad ychwanegol ar Fyrddau Iechyd er mwyn gwella awyru. 

 

Nid oes amheuaeth bod angen buddsoddiad ar ystad y GIG. Ym mis Medi 2019 
adroddwyd bod angen gwerth £261 miliwn o waith cynnal a chadw ar adeiladau’r GIG i 
ymdrin â phroblemau yr ystyrir eu bod yn peri risg uchel neu sylweddol. Hefyd mae 
cyfanswm cyfunol o £560 miliwn o ôl-groniad o waith cynnal a chadw.8 
 

Fodd bynnag, mae cyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2022/2023 wedi lleihau'r 

gwariant cyfalaf iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol o £381 miliwn i £335 miliwn, sef gostyngiad 

o £52.6 miliwn.9 Bydd y gyllideb ddangosol ar gyfer 2023/2024 yn cynyddu'r gwariant 

 
8 Ôl-groniad o £261m o waith atgyweirio brys i ysbytai ac adeiladau'r GIG - BBC News 
9 https://llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2021-12/2022-2023-naratif-y-gyllideb-ddrafft.pdf 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 36

mailto:Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-49661434
https://llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2021-12/2022-2023-naratif-y-gyllideb-ddrafft.pdf


 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â: Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk   5 
 

cyfalaf (i £375 miliwn) ond mae'n dal yn is na dyraniadau gwariant 2021/2022 (£387 

miliwn). Gyda chyllideb gyfalaf sy'n crebachu, mae angen i fyrddau iechyd flaenoriaethu 

gwariant ar unwaith ar leoliadau lle ceir materion yr ystyrir eu bod yn peri risg sylweddol.  

 

Rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru sicrhau arweiniad cenedlaethol ar awyru a chefnogi byrddau 

iechyd trwy ddarparu cyllid ar gyfer monitorau CO2 fel cam cychwynnol. Yn dilyn hyn, ac 

ar ôl casglu data, rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru nodi cynllun hirdymor i wella awyru ar draws 

ystad y GIG. 

 

Ynglŷn â'r Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol (RCN) 

Y Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol yw sefydliad proffesiynol ac undeb llafur mwyaf y byd ar 

gyfer nyrsio, yn cynrychioli dros 465,000 o nyrsys, bydwragedd, ymwelwyr iechyd, 

gweithwyr cymorth gofal iechyd a myfyrwyr nyrsio, gan gynnwys dros 27,000 o 

aelodau yng Nghymru. Mae aelodau'r RCN yn gweithio yn y sector annibynnol a'r GIG. 

Mae tua dwy ran o dair o'n haelodau wedi'u lleoli yn y gymuned. Mae'r RCN yn 

sefydliad ar gyfer y DU gyfan, gyda Byrddau Cenedlaethol yng Nghymru, yr Alban a 

Gogledd Iwerddon.   

Mae'r RCN yn cynrychioli nyrsys a nyrsio, yn hyrwyddo rhagoriaeth mewn ymarfer 

nyrsio ac yn llunio polisi iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol.        

Tudalen y pecyn 37

mailto:Policy&PublicAffairs.Wales@rcn.org.uk


 

 

 

 

 

16 Mai 2023 

Annwyl Weinidog 

Y fframwaith cyffredin dros dro mewn perthynas â Chynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU 

Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried y fframwaith cyffredin dros dro mewn perthynas â Chynllun Masnachu 

Allyriadau'r DU yn ei gyfarfod ar 29 Mawrth. Cytunodd y Pwyllgor y dylwn ysgrifennu atoch ynghylch 

nifer o faterion. 

Ym mis Ionawr 2021, ymrwymodd llywodraethau’r DU i gynllun masnachu allyriadau ar gyfer y DU 

gyfan am gyfnod o ddeng mlynedd, gyda darpariaethau i’w adolygu ar adegau penodedig. Mae'r 

fframwaith yn llywodraethu rheolaeth gydweithredol y cynllun a gweinyddiaeth ei elfennau 

deddfwriaethol ac anneddfwriaethol.  

Mae'r Fframwaith yn cydnabod bod sefydlu Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU yn golygu bod 

cymhwysedd wedi'i gadw a chymhwysedd datganoledig yn cael ei ddefnyddio. Mae’r rhan fwyaf o’r 

meysydd polisi yn dod o dan Ddeddf Newid yn yr Hinsawdd 2008. Fodd bynnag, mae angen 

rhywfaint o ddarpariaeth drwy Ddeddf Cyllid 2020. Mae’r ddogfen fframwaith yn nodi bod 

Llywodraeth Cymru a Llywodraeth y DU wedi anghytuno ar ba faterion sydd wedi’u cadw’n ôl a pha 

rai sydd wedi’u datganoli yn ystod ei thaith drwy Senedd y DU yn 2020.  

▪ Sut y gallai’r anghydfod cymhwysedd parhaus rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a Llywodraeth y DU 

effeithio ar ddeddfwriaeth a phenderfyniadau polisi yn y dyfodol o fewn fframwaith Cynllun 

Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU? 

▪ Allwch chi ymhelaethu ar y darpariaethau penodol yn y fframwaith sy’n nodi sut y caiff 

anghytundebau ar gymhwysedd eu rheoli, a sut yr ymgynghorir â’r deddfwrfeydd ar 

anghydfodau cymhwysedd? 

 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd,  
yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
— 
Climate Change, Environment,  
and Infrastructure Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddHinsawdd 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddClimate@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddClimate 
0300 200 6565 

Julie James AS 

Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

Tudalen y pecyn 38

Eitem 4.2

mailto:SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


 

 

Mae’r fframwaith yn manylu ar broses ar gyfer datrys anghytundebau ac anghydfodau rhwng y 

pedair llywodraeth, gydag anghydfodau’n cael eu huwchgyfeirio i lefel Weinidogol os oes angen. Fel 

dewis olaf, gellir uwchgyfeirio anghydfodau Gweinidogol at strwythurau rhynglywodraethol. 

▪ Sut mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn bwriadu monitro a gwerthuso effeithiolrwydd Cynllun 

Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU o ran cyflawni ei hamcanion, yn enwedig o ran lleihau allyriadau 

nwyon tŷ gwydr? 

▪ A oes unrhyw ddarpariaethau yn fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU i fynd i’r afael â 

gwahaniaethau rhanbarthol posibl yng ngweithrediad a chanlyniadau’r cynllun ar draws pedair 

gwlad y DU? 

Ym mis Ionawr 2022, cwblhaodd Llywodraeth y DU a’r llywodraethau datganoledig yr Adolygiad o 

Gysylltiadau Rhynglywodraethol, gan ddisodli Cyd-bwyllgor y Gweinidogion â dulliau newydd o 

weithio a datrys anghydfodau. Dylai'r fframwaith fod yn gydnaws â chanlyniadau'r adolygiad. 

▪ Sut mae fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU yn cyd-fynd â'r Adolygiad o 

Gysylltiadau Rhynglywodraethol, a sut y caiff canlyniadau'r adolygiad eu hintegreiddio i 

brosesau llywodraethu a datrys anghydfodau'r fframwaith? 

Mae’r fframwaith yn cyflwyno ffyrdd newydd o weithio rhwng swyddogion a Gweinidogion o bob un 

o’r pedair llywodraeth. Mae strwythurau llywodraethu amrywiol, gan gynnwys y “Gronfa Adnoddau,” 

yn rheoli’r fframwaith yn ddyddiol, gyda gweithgorau, bwrdd uwch-swyddogion, a’r Grŵp 

Rhyngweinidogol Net Sero, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd yn ymdrin â thrafodaethau polisi a gwneud 

penderfyniadau.  

▪ Allwch chi roi mwy o eglurder ynghylch rôl y 'gronfa adnoddau' o swyddogion ac egluro sut 

mae'n berthnasol i grwpiau eraill a sefydlwyd gan y fframwaith hwn? 

▪ Sut mae'r fframwaith yn sicrhau bod y 'gronfa adnoddau' o swyddogion yn cefnogi'r gwaith o 

gydgysylltu a gweithredu Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU yn effeithiol ar draws pedair 

llywodraeth y DU? 

▪ Pa gyfrifoldebau penodol a neilltuir i’r bwrdd uwch-swyddogion, a sut y bydd eu proses 

benderfynu yn rhyngweithio â strwythurau llywodraethu eraill? 

▪ Allwch chi ymhelaethu ar yr egwyddorion a amlinellir yn y fframwaith ar gyfer prosesau 

gwneud penderfyniadau, yn enwedig o ran y prosesau clirio mewnol a phrosesau cyflym ar 

gyfer y pedair llywodraeth? 

▪ Pa fesurau sydd ar waith o fewn fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU i sicrhau 

tryloywder ac atebolrwydd mewn prosesau gwneud penderfyniadau ar draws pedair 

llywodraeth y DU? 

Mae’r fframwaith yn amlinellu rolau rheoleiddwyr amgylcheddol y DU, yr Awdurdod Ymddygiad 

Ariannol, y llysoedd, a’r Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd wrth weithredu’r cynllun a’r fframwaith. 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



 

 

▪ Allwch chi ddarparu copi o’r Memorandwm Cyd-ddealltwriaeth rhwng Asiantaeth yr 

Amgylchedd a rheoleiddwyr amgylcheddol datganoledig, a barn Llywodraeth Cymru ar sut y 

bydd ei threfniadau’n effeithio ar weithrediad Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU? 

▪ Sut mae fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU yn mynd i’r afael ag anghysondebau 

posibl wrth weithredu a gorfodi’r cynllun ar draws pedair gwlad y DU, yn enwedig o ran 

rheoleiddwyr amgylcheddol a chydymffurfiaeth? 

▪ Pa rôl fydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd yn ei chwarae yn y gwaith o weithredu a goruchwylio 

fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU, a sut y caiff ei argymhellion eu hintegreiddio 

mewn penderfyniadau polisi? 

Nid oes gan y fframwaith ddarpariaethau ar gyfer ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid ond mae’n manylu ar y 

gwaith o gasglu tystiolaeth ar gyfer penderfyniadau polisi a’r potensial ar gyfer mewnbwn 

rhanddeiliaid i osgoi anghydfod. 

▪ Pa strategaethau sydd ar waith i sicrhau ymgysylltiad ystyrlon a chynhwysol â rhanddeiliaid 

wrth ddatblygu, gweithredu ac adolygu Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU? 

▪ Allwch chi roi rhagor o wybodaeth am y broses mewnbwn rhanddeiliaid yn adran osgoi 

anghydfod y fframwaith? 

Mae'r fframwaith yn amlinellu'r trefniadau ar gyfer rhwymedigaethau rhyngwladol presennol, megis 

Protocol Kyoto, Cytundeb Paris, a CORSIA. Ar gyfer rhwymedigaethau yn y dyfodol, bydd y 

llywodraethau'n defnyddio'r fframweithiau i asesu effaith masnach ryngwladol, datblygu ffurfiad polisi 

rhyngwladol y DU, a gweithredu rhwymedigaethau rhyngwladol. Bydd Memorandwm Cyd-

ddealltwriaeth Datganoli 2012 a’r Concordat Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol yn llywio'r trefniadau hyn. 

▪ Pa strategaethau sydd ar waith i sicrhau bod fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU yn 

cefnogi’r gwaith o lunio polisi rhyngwladol y DU a gweithredu rhwymedigaethau rhyngwladol, 

megis Protocol Kyoto, Cytundeb Paris, a CORSIA? 

▪ Sut y bydd pedair llywodraeth y DU yn cydgysylltu eu hymdrechion i asesu effaith masnach 

ryngwladol ar reoli gwahaniaethau polisi’r DU ac ystyried unrhyw oblygiadau o fewn 

fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU? 

▪ Ni chafodd y Concordat Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol y cyfeiriwyd ato yn y fframwaith ei gwblhau 

fel rhan o'r Adolygiad o Gysylltiadau Rhynglywodraethol a drafodwyd uchod. Yn absenoldeb y 

concordat hwn, a ydych o’r farn bod cydweithredu rhynglywodraethol ar gysylltiadau 

rhyngwladol yn parhau i gael ei lywodraethu gan Femorandwm Cyd-ddealltwriaeth 2001 ar 

ddatganoli?  

▪ Yn eich barn chi, a yw’r Fframwaith yn cynnig mwy o gyfleoedd i Lywodraeth Cymru lywio a 

chymryd rhan yng ngwaith polisi tramor a chysylltiadau rhyngwladol y DU? 

Mae’r fframwaith yn trafod system ddeuol ar gyfer prisio carbon Protocol Gogledd Iwerddon a’r 

Cytundeb Masnach a Chydweithredu, sy’n cadarnhau y bydd gan y ddwy ochr eu systemau prisio 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 

 

carbon effeithiol eu hunain. Bydd y DU a’r UE yn cydweithredu ar brisio carbon, ac yn ystyried cysylltu 

eu systemau. Mae'r fframwaith yn cydnabod y gallai’r Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau gael ei drafod 

mewn fforymau sy’n berthnasol i’r Cytundeb Masnach a Chydweithredu ac y gallai gweithredu 

cytundeb cysylltu ddod o fewn cymhwysedd datganoledig. 

▪ Allwch chi roi rhagor o wybodaeth am oblygiadau posibl cytundeb cysylltu rhwng Cynllun 

Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU a Chynllun Masnachu Allyriadau’r UE, yn enwedig mewn meysydd 

cymhwysedd datganoledig? 

▪ A yw Llywodraeth Cymru yn cefnogi cysylltu Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU a'r UE? 

▪ Sut mae'r fframwaith yn mynd i'r afael â heriau posibl sy'n deillio o ddod â sylweddau sy'n 

teneuo'r osôn i ben yn raddol a rheoli allyriadau diwydiannol ac aer o fewn cyd-destun 

chwarae teg rhwng y DU a'r UE? 

▪ Yng nghyd-destun y Cytundeb Masnach a Chydweithredu, sut y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn 

gweithio gyda llywodraethau eraill y DU i fonitro gwahaniaethau ac aliniad i/o safonau’r UE, 

gan gynnwys er mwyn osgoi mesurau dial posibl? 

Mae Cyfraith yr UE a Ddargedwir yn cyfeirio at ddeddfwriaeth yr UE a droswyd yn gyfraith ddomestig 

ar ddiwedd cyfnod pontio Brexit. Gall y DU a llywodraethau datganoledig addasu Cyfraith yr UE a 

Ddargedwir o fewn eu cymhwysedd, gan arwain o bosibl at wahaniaethau rhwng rheolau’r DU a’r UE, 

a rheolau rhwng gwledydd y DU. Nod y fframweithiau yw rheoli gwahaniaethau o'r fath, y cyfeirir 

atynt fel 'dargyfeiriad'. Yn wahanol i fframweithiau eraill, nid yw fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu 

Allyriadau'r DU yn cyfeirio at Gyfraith yr UE a Ddargedwir, ac nid yw ychwaith yn cynnwys rhestr o 

Gyfreithiau’r UE a Ddargedwir o fewn cwmpas.  

▪ Allwch chi egluro’r rhyngweithiad rhwng fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU a Bil 

Cyfraith yr UE a Ddargedwir a nodi Cyfraith yr UE a Ddargedwir o fewn cymhwysedd sy’n sail 

i’r fframwaith? 

▪ Allech chi ddarparu asesiad Llywodraeth Cymru o effaith Bil Cyfraith yr UE a Ddargedwir ar y 

fframwaith?  

Mae’r fframwaith yn amlinellu’r broses monitro ac adolygu, gydag adolygiad cynhwysfawr o fewn tri 

mis i gyfnod adolygu cytunedig Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU yn 2023 ac adolygiadau ad-hoc yn 

ôl yr angen. Fodd bynnag, nid yw'n nodi'r partïon ymgynghori nac ymgysylltiad y ddeddfwrfa yn 

ystod y broses adolygu. 

Yn ei adroddiad ar y fframwaith ansawdd aer a chemegau a phlaladdwyr, argymhellodd y Pwyllgor 

hwn y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru egluro pryd a sut y bydd rhanddeiliaid yn bwydo i mewn i 

fframweithiau fel mater o drefn a sicrhau nad yw fframweithiau’n cyfyngu ar rôl rhanddeiliaid wrth 

ddatblygu’r gyfraith a pholisi. 

Mae’r Pwyllgor hwn hefyd wedi galw o’r blaen ar Lywodraeth Cymru i lunio adroddiadau blynyddol ar 

weithrediad y fframweithiau ac i geisio cytundeb rhynglywodraethol ar rôl wedi’i diffinio’n glir i 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 

 

seneddau’r DU wrth adolygu fframweithiau, safbwynt a gefnogir gan Bwyllgor Economi, Masnach a 

Materion Gwledig y Senedd a Phwyllgor Craffu ar Fframweithiau Cyffredin Tŷ’r Arglwyddi. 

▪ Sut mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn bwriadu ymgorffori argymhellion y Pwyllgor ynghylch rôl 

deddfwrfeydd a rhanddeiliaid yn y gwaith o adolygu a diwygio fframweithiau? 

▪ Allwch chi roi rhagor o wybodaeth am sut y caiff fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU 

ei adolygu a’i ddiwygio, yn enwedig o ran cynnwys rhanddeiliaid a deddfwrfeydd? 

▪ Sut mae’r fframwaith yn mynd i’r afael â galwad y Pwyllgor am lunio adroddiadau blynyddol ar 

weithrediad y fframweithiau? 

▪ Beth yw'r meini prawf ar gyfer sbarduno adolygiadau ad-hoc o fframwaith Cynllun Masnachu 

Allyriadau'r DU? 

 

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar am ymateb erbyn dydd Mawrth 27 Mehefin 2023. 

 

Yn gywir, 

 

Llyr Gruffydd AS, 

Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd, a Seilwaith 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg.  

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In March 2023, the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure Committee 
submitted its report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure Strategy and Action Plan. The report includes 21 recommendations. This is 
the Welsh Government’s response to those recommendations.  

Welsh Government 

The Welsh Government’s EV 
charging infrastructure 
strategy and action plan 

Response to the CCEI 
Committee report (March 2023) 
09/05/2023 

www.gov.wales Tudalen y pecyn 43

Eitem 4.3



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

2 

Contents 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................ 3

2. Response to the 21 recommendations ........................................... 4

Recommendation 1 .........................................................................................................................................................4 

Recommendation 2 ........................................................................................................................................................4 

Recommendation 3 ........................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Recommendation 4........................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Recommendation 5 ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Recommendation 6 ........................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Recommendation 7 ....................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Recommendation 8 ...................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Recommendation 9 ...................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Recommendation 10 .................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Recommendation 11 ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Recommendation 12 .................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Recommendation 13 .................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Recommendation 14 .................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Recommendation 15 .................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Recommendation 16 .................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Recommendation 17 .................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Recommendation 18 .................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Recommendation 19 ................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Recommendation 20 .................................................................................................................................................. 20 

Recommendation 21 .................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

3 

Introduction 

Since the Welsh Government published our EV Charging Strategy in 2021, we 
have invested over £26 million in charging infrastructure across Wales, 
increasing the number of public devices by 120%, corresponding to a total of 
1,465 charge points as at 1st January 2023. 

Between October and December 2022, Wales had the greatest increase in total 
charging devices at 17.3%, and the largest percentage increase in rapid charging 
or above devices at 26.9% compared to all regions across the UK. 

Significant further investment will be required to meet projected levels of EV 
uptake and demand, especially after the proposed internal combustion engine 
(ICE) ban and into the 2030s.

Working with our delivery partners, we want to seize the opportunity to lead by 
example and help build a reliable, efficient EV charging network in Wales, 
transforming the way residents and visitors travel. To achieve this, Welsh 
Government has developed a programme-level roadmap, setting out actions 
across five key priorities for Welsh Government and delivery partners for the next 
3-5 years, pivotal to the successful acceleration of EV charging infrastructure 
across Wales, and meeting the defined KPIs set by the Strategy.

I thank the members of the Climate Change, Environment and Infrastructure 
Committee for their report on the Welsh Government’s EV charging 
infrastructure strategy and action plan. I have set out my response to the 
Report’s individual recommendations below. 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

4 

Response to the 21 recommendations 

Recommendation 1 

The Committee recommends that 

The Welsh Government should revisit the EV Charging Strategy in light of the 
changing patterns of EV usage and the growth of commercial EVs. The Welsh 
Government should set a timeline for this work and consult with relevant 
stakeholders, including drivers and charging infrastructure providers.  

Response: Reject 

We recognise that, owing to the increasing uptake of electric vehicles, including 
battery electric vans, advancements in battery capacities and charging 
technology, patterns of EV usage are changing rapidly. However, we developed 
the EV charging strategy with this in mind and believe that the primary 
objectives of the strategy, increasing provision through supporting private sector 
roll-out and addressing gaps in the market as well as enabling longer distance 
travel throughout Wales, remain valid. Nevertheless, we will monitor emerging 
trends and seek to address specific requirements for public chargepoints where 
this would be useful.     

As noted by the Committee, a plan for freight is being developed and we agree 
that decarbonisation should be considered as part of that plan. We are 
developing a greater understanding of potential requirements for infrastructure 
through engagement with experts as a signatory of the Global MoU on zero 
emission HDV (heavy duty vehicles), with the DfT and various fora, and are 
promoting Welsh participation in the Zero Emission Road Freight Trials.   

Financial Implications – this work will be accommodated within existing 
budgets.  

Recommendation 2 

The Committee recommends that 

The Welsh Government should provide an update on the development of the 
Transport Decarbonisation Programme, which will support the decarbonisation 
of buses and taxis and private-hire vehicles. 

Response: Accept 

Net Zero Wales Carbon Budget 2 sets out the full range of policies to deliver 
carbon reductions during the period 2021 to 2025.  

Tudalen y pecyn 46



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

5 

Welsh Government will provide an update on the Transport Decarbonisation 
Programme, which will support the decarbonisation of buses and taxis and 
private-hire vehicles, by the Autumn.  

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 3 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should ensure that the EV Charging Strategy takes into 
account questions of equality and social justice. 

Response: Accept  

The Welsh Government has developed an equality impact assessment (EqIA) 
which looks at risks around the Welsh Government EV Charging delivery 
portfolio (initiatives, projects and studies) resulting in disproportionate or 
differential equality effects for protected characteristic groups. The EqIA has 
been carried out in line with the public sector equality duty in section 149 of the 
Equality Act 2010 (the Act). Whilst not an EqIA requirement, the report also 
identifies how equality issues have been integrated into the development of the 
EV charging portfolio to date. A copy of the EqIA report is attached. 

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 4 

The Committee recommends that  

No later than six months after the publication of this report, the Welsh 
Government should provide the Committee with a detailed update on progress 
against the Action Plan; progress against the commitments it gave in written 
evidence (set out in paragraph 13 of this report); and progress towards the 
delivery of each of the recommendations in this report.  

Response: Accept  

Officials constructed an ambitious delivery programme supported by modelling 
tools, National Standards and effective relationships with key delivery partners.  

TfW has been leading a project to deliver 19 rapid EV charging points on the 
Strategic Road Network. This is being delivered by a unique partnership whereby 
the network is largely funded commercially, but public funding is focused on 
“unlocking” sites with severe grid constraints through funding DNO works. The 
location of these sites is focused in areas which are considered unlikely to benefit 
from purely commercial investment in the near to mid-term, yet are vital for 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

6 

ensuring consistency of provision across the SRN for “top up” charging en-route 
to key tourist and other destinations across Wales. Development is also focused 
on sites in public ownership, with the added benefit of providing a modest 
income stream from the lease with charge point operators. Sites have also been 
carefully selected based on the facilities nearby, including their ability to provide 
benefits to existing local businesses and the hospitality sector. Completion of this 
project in 2023 will see rapid charge points at least every 25 miles and for most of 
the network every 20 miles across Wales – two years ahead of the Action Plan 
target. 

This baseline charging infrastructure across Wales’ SRN is a major step towards 
providing users with the confidence that they can drive across Wales without 
running out of charge – and the strategy’s vision that “By 2025, all users of 
electric cars and vans in Wales are confident that they can access EV charging 
infrastructure when and where they need it.” 

By January 2023, the number of chargepoints per 100,000 residents installed in 
Wales has increased from 21 to 47.2 (UK average is 55.3) or around 125% growth. 
Wales is showing the greatest increase of any UK region in both total charging 
provision (17.3%) and rapid charging (26.9%). 

We will provide further update on progress against the Action Plan and progress 
on the delivery of the 21 recommendations by the end of September 2023.   

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 5 

The Committee recommends that  

The Deputy Minister should clarify how the deliverability plan will relate to the 
Action Plan and reassure the Committee that the production of plans is not a 
substitute for action. 

Response: Accept  

The purpose of the deliverability plan is to set out how the strategy and action 
plan will be delivered in practice, to be referred to as the EV charging 
Infrastructure Programme (the Programme), as Welsh Government sets out to 
accelerate the roll-out of charging infrastructure across Wales.  

The Programme focuses on the deliverability of the financial, commercial and 
management cases of the strategy and action plan. A copy of the Executive 
Summary of the Programme report is attached. 

The financial case suggests a total capex cost of between £351 million to £1,550 
million for On-Route and Destination charging by 2040, with no growth after 
that point, with £114 million to £689 million spent on On-Route charging and 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

7 

£236 million to £861 million on Destination charging. By this point On-Route 
chargepoints number 1.1 to 6.5 thousand and Destination 6.4 to 61.8 thousand, 
with a total of 7.4 to 68.4 thousand. Charging capacity reaches 141 to 1,165 MW, 
spread across 968 to 23,500 sites. This analysis is agnostic of which body is taking 
financial responsibility. 

From a commercial perspective (and considering the considerable costs 
mentioned above), Welsh Government expects that most of the charging 
infrastructure will be delivered by the private sector. The role of Welsh 
Government is to facilitate private sector investments across Wales and ensure 
equality of access for all by focussed market interventions such as subsidies, 
concessions, etc. The plan for EV charging is to ensure more equitable coverage 
throughout the development of the network. 

The Programme recommends that two elements of the delivery strategy be 
prioritised first (before moving on to others): the on-route network and 
destination / on-street charging in built-up areas. These elements will have the 
most short-term benefit for users in Wales, providing a strong cross-national 
network and catering to users who have a greater need for public charging. 

The management case outlines the key considerations when delivering and 
managing the programme of interventions needed to facilitate and deliver the 
preferred network. The scale and complexity of delivering the EVCI programme 
necessitates a strong and effective management structure which determines 
how Welsh Government and delivery partners will deliver and manage the EVCI 
programme. This is a significant step-up from the Welsh Government resources 
that are devoted today.  

More work and development are needed to implement the EVCI programme in 
the next phase, harnessing the work done to date (e.g. National Standards, early 
market engagement). To achieve this, a programme-level roadmap has been 
developed, setting out actions across five key priorities for Welsh Government 
and delivery partners for the next 3-5 years, to deliver successful acceleration of 
EV charging infrastructure across Wales, and meet the defined KPIs set by the 
Strategy. 

5 key priorities: 

1. Establish a Project Management Office (PMO) to govern delivery 
arrangements, set standards and monitor progress. 

2. Provide support and guidance to enable local authorities (and private sector) 
to deliver the preferred network. 

3. Engagement with the private sector to ensure we optimise the delivery of the 
preferred network and foster public-private sector collaboration. 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

8 

4. Develop the mechanisms, knowledge and tools to deliver the preferred 
network. 

5. Leverage the resource and mechanisms necessary to rapidly deliver the 
network in line with policy objectives. 

Financial Implications – This work is being delivered by TfW (via the Remit letter), 
with support from Welsh Government.  

 

Recommendation 6 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should review the KPIs in the Action Plan. For Actions to 
be delivered to a longer timescale, such as Actions 1 and 7, it should aim to 
develop more specific KPIs, with sub-actions and associated deadlines.  

Response: Accept  

Welsh Government will review the KPIs in the Action Plan to ensure they are 
specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and timebound (SMART).  

Welsh Government believes the Committee’s statement that “Welsh 
Government had completely failed to deliver many of the Actions in the Action 
Plan and by the lack of progress towards achieving others” is an unfair 
evaluation of the work and results that have been completed to date.  

The complexity of delivering the strategy needs to be recognised. Key to the 
Welsh Government commercial strategy is the underlying principle that there 
can be no “one size fits all” approach to market intervention. The Welsh 
Government strategy sets out the need to balance actual charging needs with 
the goals of the preferred network, maximising return on infrastructure delivery 
while minimising public spending and allocating most risk to the private sector. 
Equality gaps in private sector investment need to be assessed on a case-by-case 
basis. Further, financial intervention need to be targeted and limited, considering 
factors such as ownership of land, the costs that will be passed on to the 
consumer, and the actual charging need in the area – for example, the 
Government could subsidise grid connection capex at key on-route sites where 
grid capacity is limited or there is a great distance to the nearest point of 
connection.  

Since the publication of the strategy, Welsh Government has focused its limited 
resources on two key priorities: delivering a baseline charging infrastructure 
across Wales that gives users the confidence that they can travel across Wales 
without fear of running out of charge (the vision of the strategy); and developing 
tools and plans that will help local authorities and other delivery partners 
accelerate the roll-out of publicly available charging facilities across Wales.  

Tudalen y pecyn 50



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

9 

Actions Expected KPIs KPIs delivered 

1 1 public charge 
point for every 7-
10 EVs by 2025 

As at September 2022 (latest data available 
for the comparison), Wales has 1,417 public 
chargepoints installed, approximately 1 
chargepoint for every 9 BEV. The total UK 
figure is 1 chargepoint for approximately 
every 16 BEV.    

2 Connections 
Group to report in 
the current 
financial year 
(2021) 

Remains to be delivered. See response to 
Recommendation 12.  

3 Network of 
charging 
forecourts across 
Wales at 
approximately 20 
miles across the 
SRN by 2025 

The installation of 19 rapid charge points at 
least every 25 miles and for most of the 
network every 20 miles across Wales will be 
completed in 2023 - two years ahead of the 
Action Plan target. 

 

4 WG will deliver a 
National Quality 
Standard to be 
used in public 
sector 
procurement by 
the end of 2021 

Welsh Government has developed National 
Standards for EV Charging Infrastructure in 
Wales. The online guide details a set of best 
practice recommendations for safe, 
accessible, and reliable public electric 
vehicle charging in Wales. The Standards 
have been developed for use by public 
sector organisations, community 
enterprises and delivery partners involved in 
the deployment of electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure in Wales.  

The guide has been used by local 
authorities and other deliver partners since 
January 2022, and will be published on the 
Welsh Government website in the next few 
weeks. 

5 Review of policy 
and regulations 
by 2022 and 
updates made, 
where 
appropriate, to 

Welsh Government will consult on draft 
amendments to Building Regulations 
during the first half of 2023. The draft 
amendments are to mandate the provision 
of EV chargepoints for each new dwelling 
with an associated car parking space and 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

10 

support EV 
uptake 

that every new non-residential building 
with more than 10 car parking spaces to 
have one chargepoint and additional cable 
routing.  

Welsh Government will work with the 
electricity industry to facilitate a further 
review of the Welsh Government policy and 
regulations to support electric vehicle 
charging. This will include whether any 
further measures can be taken to support 
local and regional spatial planning and a 
framework for strategic and local 
development plans.  

There will be a review of Permitted 
Development rights in view of industry 
alignment and addressing any 
inconsistencies in development control or 
the way in which it is applied across the UK. 
There will be ongoing engagement and 
collaboration with local planning authorities 
to support the development of local 
approaches. 

6 Establishment of 
a charge point 
operator working 
group in 2021 

Remains to be delivered. See response to 
Recommendation 17. 

7 Enhanced public 
confidence in EV 
charging, moving 
Wales from the 
innovator stage to 
early majority 
stage of market 
maturity by 2030. 

Welsh Government is planning a 
communication programme that will keep 
stakeholders and the public updated, 
increasing their confidence in EV charging.  

8 Complete a 
supply chain and 
opportunities 
review by end of 
2021. Establish a 
programme to 
realise 
opportunities for 

The Welsh Government Transport 
Decarbonisation team is working with the 
Business & Regions division (including 
Innovation and the Inward Investment 
teams) to identify and support innovation 
and private sector investment 
opportunities.  

Tudalen y pecyn 52



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

11 

innovation and 
investment.  

 

Welsh Government is developing a new 
National Procurement Framework that will 
provide the opportunity to work 
collaboratively across the Welsh public 
sector to ensure a standard delivery model 
and avoid ad-hoc procurement exercises. It 
will help deliver wider benefits for Wales, 
such as the opportunity to develop a supply 
chain in Wales.  

 

The 19 rapid charging sites on the SRN have 
been carefully selected based on the 
facilities nearby, including their ability to 
provide economic development benefits to 
existing local businesses and the hospitality 
sector. 

9 Charging 
infrastructure to 
be considered in 
all relevant new 
and emerging 
local and regional 
development 
plans, starting 
2021.  

 

EV charging is already covered in both Planning 
Policy Wales and the Future Wales.  

Meeting the requirement for EV charging is also 
a key part of the development of Local Area 
Energy Planning (LAEP), a pioneering approach 
which addresses the whole energy system.  

 

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 7 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should deliver on its commitment to review the KPIs 
annually and publish the review's outcome. In addition, the Welsh Government 
should publish regular updates on progress against the KPIs.  

Response: Reject 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

12 

The Welsh Government recognises that monitoring the progress of EV charging 
infrastructure provision is a critical task to ensure the programme is on course to 
achieve the objectives and KPIs set by the Strategy, as well as ensure sufficient 
charging infrastructure is being provided to meet future EV demand.  

The Welsh Government is planning to review and publish the KPIs at strategic 
points in time, reflecting key stages of the delivery programme and the 
availability of resources.  

Financial Implications – this work will be accommodated within existing 
budgets.  

 

Recommendation 8 

The Committee recommends that  

The Deputy Minister should confirm whether the target of rapid charge points at 
least every 20 miles on the strategic road network is on track to be achieved and 
confirm when he expects the target to be met.  

Response: Accept  

The installation of 19 rapid charge points at least every 25 miles and for most of 
the network every 20 miles across Wales will be completed in 2023 - two years 
ahead of the Action Plan target. Refer to response to Recommendation 13 for 
further details.  

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 9 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should provide further details on specific actions related 
to EV charging infrastructure that the Ultra-Low Emissions Vehicle 
Transformation Fund (ULEVTF) will be used to fund. 

Response: Accept  

Local authorities have a crucial role to play in enabling the transition to EVs in 
their areas, including proactively supporting and delivering the rollout of electric 
vehicle chargepoints. 

The purpose of the ULEV grant is to provide local authorities with government 
funding support to deliver publicly available EV charging infrastructure in their 
areas in line with the objectives of the EV charging strategy for Wales and its 
Action Plan.  

Tudalen y pecyn 54



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

13 

ULEV eligibility criteria:  

• Delivery of destination charging 
Destination charging typically takes place at locations the user would 
otherwise already visit: retail centres, grocers, gyms, etc. The user charges at 
the destination car park while they visit. In locations where dwell time is 
longer, e.g. overnight at hotels, slow charging may be used. Most destination 
chargepoints (CPs) are fast, while some may be rapid, e.g. where dwell time is 
shorter. PodPoint has projected that 7% of all charging will take place at 
destinations in a fully fledged EV market. Public rapid and ultra-rapid 
charging – which includes hub, on-route, and some destination – makes up 
45% of public charging demand by energy, as modelled by BloombergNEF. 

• Delivery of on-street charging 
On-street charging is typically on the slower side of public charging, with 
vehicles often dwelling at the charger overnight. Slow and fast CPs are often 
incorporated into street-side lamp posts or are installed along the kerb. Tariffs 
often range considerably, even within network. Reduced rates can be 
available for residents charging within their local area, for non-urban areas, 
and / or for network members. Modelling from BloombergNEF indicates that 
the majority of on-street charging takes place on slow chargers. 

Welsh Government are encouraging local authorities to submit applications 
to the Office for Zero Emission Vehicle (OZEV) for the On-Street Residential 
Chargepoint Scheme (ORCS) once the scheme is launched. The purpose of 
the scheme is to increase the availability of on-street chargepoints in 
residential streets where off-street parking is not available, thereby ensuring 
that on-street parking is not a barrier to realising the benefits of owning 
an EV. Refer to response to Recommendation 11. 

• Delivery of hub charging facilities  

Hubs are dedicated sites, often serving multi-modal vehicle demand, 
sometimes with retail or industrial facilities on-site. Charging available at hubs 
is often rapid and ultra-rapid, with short dwell times. Hubs are sometimes 
used by drivers charging on-route. They are distinct from street charging and 
destination charging in their location and charging-focused offering. Hubs 
can be in remote or urban areas, but grid constraints (limiting the size of 
connection) and land availability can pose challenges, especially in the latter. 
Many hubs have charging facilities dedicated to multiple user types, e.g. taxis, 
fleet vehicles, buses, private cars. It can be challenging to serve different 
vehicle modes at one hub if their technical charging needs are unique. 

• Delivery of co-location sites  
• Assess the opportunity for the colocation of renewables with EV charging 

infrastructure.  

Tudalen y pecyn 55



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

14 

Financial Implications – We have allocated £xx million and £xx million in ULEV 
grants for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 financial years respectively. [DRAFTING NOTE: 
This will be updated by officials following agreement of MA-LW-0927-23 on 
capital budgets.] 

 

Recommendation 10 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should work with stakeholders to develop guidelines for 
best practice in placing public charging infrastructure.  

Response: Accept  

Welsh Government has developed National Standards for EV Charging 
Infrastructure in Wales. The online guide details a set of best practice 
recommendations for safe, accessible, and reliable public electric vehicle 
charging in Wales. The Standards have been developed for use by public sector 
organisations, community enterprises and delivery partners involved in the 
deployment of electric vehicle charging infrastructure in Wales. Except where 
explicitly stated, the recommendations set out in the National Standards are not 
legally binding. Instead, they have been developed to form an informative best 
practice guide to support Wales towards its net zero carbon targets.  

The recommendations cover areas including the specifications surrounding 
charge point design, such as speeds, planning requirements and plug 
connection types, as well as placement of the charge point within the 
surrounding environment. They also cover aspects of streetscape, including 
accessibility and security, energy and connection needs, operational aspects, 
procurement notes and emerging and future considerations. They provide 
solutions to avoid any obstruction of footways and safeguard travel routes.  It is 
appreciated that not all the recommendations will be applicable in every 
situation as each individual charge point needs to respond to local needs and 
nuances, as well as regional and national policy frameworks. However, the 
National Standards strive to ensure that, going forward, all users of electric 
vehicles in Wales are confident in their ability to access charging infrastructure 
wherever and whenever required. 

The National Standards will be published shortly. 

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 11 

The Committee recommends that  

Tudalen y pecyn 56



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

15 

The Welsh Government should assess the impact of the decision to no longer 
allow Welsh Government funding to be used to make up the 25% of funding not 
covered by a grant under the On-Street Residential Charging Scheme (ORCS) 
and provide information on discussions it has held with the UK Government on 
this issue. 

Response: Accept  

Welsh Government are encouraging local authorities to submit applications to 
the Office for Zero Emission Vehicle (OZEV) for the On-Street Residential 
Chargepoint Scheme (ORCS) once the scheme is launched. The purpose of the 
scheme is to increase the availability of on-street chargepoints in residential 
streets where off-street parking is not available, thereby ensuring that on-street 
parking is not a barrier to realising the benefits of owning an EV. 

The scheme gives local authorities access to grant funding that can be used to 
part-fund the procurement and installation of on-street EV chargepoint 
infrastructure for residential needs. As demand for on-street charging 
infrastructure grows, Welsh Government expect the private sector to invest more 
to build and operate a thriving, self-sustaining public network. It is essential that 
local authorities facilitate commercial models being put in place to ensure 
networks can continue to expand and improve, to serve residents’ needs. Local 
authorities are encouraged to explore all commercial options available to them 
when planning EV infrastructure. 

ORCS 2023-24 applications will be eligible for 50% ORCS funding and will be 
required to secure 50% private match-funding. We work closely with the OZEV 
and agree with them about the need to ensure that private companies are 
contributing to chargepoints roll-out.  

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 12 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should explain why the connections Group that it 
committed to establishing under Action 2 was not established according to the 
timeline in the Action Plan. The Welsh Government should establish the 
connections Group within the next few weeks.  

Response: Reject   

Welsh Government plan is planning to establish a Connections group in early 
autumn 2023 that will include Welsh Government, TfW and Distribution Network 
Operators initially to scope the remit of the group. At that point, the group will 
identify what other parties would need to be involve. The overarching purpose of 

Tudalen y pecyn 57



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

16 

the Connections group will be to maximise the availability of power for charging 
vehicles.  

Officials have established a good working relationship with both SPEN and 
National Grid (WPD). It was felt that a robust delivery programme needed to be 
developed before the Connections Group is established, so that the group could 
be presented with a clear and agreed direction of travel.  

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 13 

The Committee recommends that  

The Deputy Minister should provide an update on the comments from the 
Electric Vehicle Association (EVA) Cymru that infrastructure is in place in only 3 of 
the 21 locations identified by TfW as expecting new infrastructure under Action 3. 

Response: Accept  

The SRN Rapid project included 11 sites originally (not counting Bala as the pilot 
site). The 21 figure reflected chargepoints for the original 11 sites and not 
locations.  

TfW have added another 7 sites to the project, which means they are delivering 
36 chargepoints on 19 sites (if we add in Bala). 

A site in Conwy was removed from the project and replaced with a site in 
Anglesey.  

TfW have already delivered 6 of the 19 locations and on track to deliver the 
remaining 13 locations this year, most of them by Q3 2023.  

 

Location Local Authority  Site Live  Updates 

Bala Pilot - Y Grîn (Pilot 
Site) 

Gwynedd 17/11/2021 
Completed - site live 
Transferred ownership to SWARCO 
- 22/11/22 

Machynlleth - Bank St Powys 14/07/2022 Completed - site live 

Crickhowell - Beaufort St Powys 27/09/2022 Completed - site live 

Newtown - Back Lane Powys 19/12/2022 Completed - site live 

Llandovery - Castle Car Park Carmarthenshire 23/12/2022 Completed - site live 

Llanybydder - CP off Teras-
Yr-Osaf 

Carmarthenshire 23/12/2022 Completed - site live 

Dolgellau - Y Marian Mawr Gwynedd 26/05/2023   

Tudalen y pecyn 58



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

17 

Porthmadog  - Lard-yr-
Orsaf 

Gwynedd 26/05/2023   

Blaenau Ffestiniog - Diffwys Gwynedd 26/05/2023   

Ammanford - 
Carregamman Car Park 

Carmarthenshire Q2 2023   

Corwen Car Park Denbighshire Q2 2023   

Welshpool - Church Street Powys 12/05/2023   

Llandrindod Wells - High 
Street CP 

Powys 19/05/2023   

Porthcawl - Eastern 
Promenade 

Bridgend Q3 2023 - TBC Lease to be returned.  

Talgarth CP Powys Q3 2023 - TBC 
3rd party Wayleave and disruptive 
work.  

Newcastle Emlyn - 
Livestock Market CP 

Carmarthenshire TBC 

Car park to be registered before 
wayleave can clear, then need 
to build a Transformer. 

Craig -y -Nos 
Powys - Brecon 
National Park 

TBC 

Planning required and 1MW 
substation to be delivered. Also 
wayleaves and lease to be 
completed 

Llangurig - Blue Bell 
Powys (private 
landlord) 

TBC Lease to be agreed.  

Plas Arthur Leisure Centre IACC TBC Planning required.  

Colwyn Bay Princes Drive 
CP 

Conwy   
Site removed from the project by 
Conwy council  

 

Financial Implications – Total project costs: £697,959. Approximately £500k of 
Ofgem Green Recovery funding towards the DNO costs was received for 8 of the 
19 sites. 

 

Recommendation 14 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should clarify why Action 4 was delivered late and 
provide an update on when the Standard was completed and whether local 
authorities have used it since then.  

Response: Accept  

Refer to response to Recommendation 10.  

The development of the National Standards formed part of a portfolio of six 
complex and ambitious workstreams commissioned by Welsh Government and 
delivered by Arup between April 2022 and March 2023 that will help TfW, local 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

18 

authorities and other delivery partners accelerate the delivery of charging 
infrastructure across Wales.   

The Welsh Government believes it was important to take the time required to 
develop strong evidence-base Standards.    

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 15 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should explain why the review of building regulations 
was not delivered in 2022, as committed to under Action 5. 

Response: Accept  

The requirement to prioritise work meant that the consultation on the 
amendment of Building Regulations to mandate EV chargepoints was deferred 
but work has now progressed, and the consultation is due to be launched in 
summer 2023.  

Financial Implications – £100k has been allocated to delivering the Building 
Regulations consultation.  

 

Recommendation 16 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should work closely with local authorities and 
stakeholders to ensure the review of building regulations to support EV uptake is 
completed as soon as possible. The Welsh Government should provide the 
Committee with a timeline for completing this work. The Government should 
consider how the planning system can encourage or require the delivery of 
charging infrastructure alongside other appropriate developments such as 
hotels, visitor attractions, and fuelling stations.  

Response: Accept  

A consultation on the amendment of Building Regulations to mandate EV 
chargepoints is due to be launched in summer 2023.  

Both Planning Policy Wales and Future Wales support the provision of EV 
chargepoints. Future Wales, which has development plan status, states under 
Policy 12: Regional Connectivity that: "Where car parking is provided for new 
non‑residential development, planning authorities should seek a minimum of 
10% of car parking spaces to have electric vehicle charging points." 

Tudalen y pecyn 60



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

19 

Financial Implications – £100k has been allocated to delivering the Building 
Regulations consultation.  

 

Recommendation 17 

The Committee recommends that  

The Welsh Government should explain why a charge point operator working 
group was not established in 2021, as committed to under Action 6. The Welsh 
Government should fulfil the commitment in the Action Plan and establish the 
charge point operator group within the next few weeks. This group is essential to 
speed up the deployment of the EV charging infrastructure. 

Response: Reject 

Welsh Government and TfW agreed that the EV charging Infrastructure 
Programme (as defined in response to Recommendation 5) was a prerequisite to 
our formal engagement with a group of CPOs. We expect the majority of the EV 
charging infrastructure in Wales will be delivered by the private sector (and the 
UK Government agrees with this position). Our financial case modelling 
estimates the cost of installing all On-Route and Destination charging 
infrastructure in Wales to reach £351 million to £1.550 million by 2040. It was 
therefore crucial that we take the time to establish clear, evidenced-based 
priorities and actions that will enable public and private sector delivery partners 
to accelerate the delivery of infrastructure across Wales.  

The Infrastructure Programme is now completed and TfW, with support from 
Welsh Government, will set up a CPO Working group in the summer 2023.  

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 18 

The Committee recommends that  

The Committee would like an update on the development of the proposal for an 
in-house service desk to facilitate all aspects of EV charge point delivery and 
management, including whether it will be reflected in a revised Action Plan or 
associated KPIs.  

Response: Accept  

TfW’s capacity was increased in September 2022 to oversee the implementation 
of the in-house service desk. TfW met with each local authority to gain a greater 
understanding of their EV charging infrastructure plans, issues and support 
requirements. 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

20 

The service desk is operational and provides bilingual call out support to public 
and private sector EV charging delivery partners, enabling them to respond in 
Welsh to queries from users. 

Through the service desk, TfW organises and delivers webinars on issues and 
topics raised by delivery partners. The first webinar on 14th April 2023 delivered a 
presentation on the National EV Insight & Strategy (NEVIS) tools. This resulted in 
strong positive feedback which led to the decision to enable local authorities and 
NHS organisations to access the NEVIS tools through the service desk. The 
Insights toolkit provides data analysis that ensure that delivery partner 
organisations are equipped to deliver a clear vision, strategy and delivery plan for 
EV infrastructure.  The Knowledge Repository toolkit will equip and resource local 
authorities and NHS organisations with guidance and key information for each 
stage of the EV infrastructure delivery process (developing strategy; delivering 
planning; procurement; mobilisation & installation; and operations). The service 
also provides a discussion group platform for sharing experience and topic ideas, 
encouraging collaboration and contribution.   

Financial Implications – None.  

 

Recommendation 19 

The Committee recommends that  

The KPI for Action 7 – ‘Increase public awareness’ - should be revisited to make it 
more granular and measurable. 

Response: Accept  

Welsh Government will review the KPI for Action 7, as part of our wider KPI 
review (refers to our response to Recommendation 7).   

Financial Implications – this work will be accommodated within existing 
budgets.  

 

Recommendation 20 

The Committee recommends that  

The Deputy Minister should clarify why Action 8 – ‘Encourage investment 
opportunity and innovation’ - was not delivered on time and take steps to 
progress it within the next six months. 

Response: Accept  

Welsh Government believes it was essential to develop a credible delivery 
programme and preferred network before engaging with delivery partners to 

Tudalen y pecyn 62

https://nevis.cenex.co.uk/


Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

21 

discuss investment opportunities. This work took Welsh Government 
approximately 12 months to deliver.  

Welsh Government is bringing together the Transport Decarbonisation and 
Business & Regions teams to explore and deliver private sector investment and 
innovation opportunities in the field of EVs and EV charging.  

Welsh Government is building a new National EV Charging Procurement 
Framework that will help the development of supply chain, innovation and 
investment opportunities across Wales. The Framework is scheduled to be ready 
by the end of the summer.   

TfW are working with local authorities and private sector to identify and 
implement innovative solutions and investment opportunities that will help 
resolve key issues that are currently hindering progress – e.g. on-street charging 
solutions.  

Financial Implications – None. 

 

Recommendation 21 

The Committee recommends that  

The Deputy Minister should provide a detailed update on the progress made 
against Action 9 and the tool it has commissioned to assess the opportunity for 
the co-location of renewables and EV charging infrastructure. 

Response: Accept  

Welsh Government has commissioned Arup to design and create a modelling 
tool to assess the opportunity for the colocation of renewables with EV charging 
infrastructure (referred to as the ‘colocation tool’). The tool is ready and is 
designed for site level work which may sit within broader Smart Local Energy 
Systems (SLES) or Local Area Energy Plans (LAEPs).  

The purpose of the tool is to appraise opportunities for the use of renewables 
within EV charging sites. For a given site, the tool will compare:  

• Connecting the site to the electricity grid with no renewables. 
• Using wind and solar canopy with any excess renewables exported to the 

grid. 
• Using ground mounted solar and solar canopy with any excess renewables 

exported to the grid. 
• Using wind and solar canopy with battery storage. 
• Using ground mounted and solar canopy with battery storage.  

The tool can also be used to compare different sites. 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

22 

The colocation tool is designed to improve understanding around the following 
points:  

• The types of EV charging sites most suitable for the colocation of 
renewables. 

• The renewable and storage configurations most suitable for colocation 
with EV charging. 

• High-level indication of the comparative costs of colocation. 
• Where additional financial support may be required to support installation 

of colocation sites. 

Installing behind-the-meter renewables at EV sites has the potential benefits of:  

• Providing zero or low carbon electricity to EVs  
• Reducing demand on electricity networks, particularly in constrained areas 

 

Financial Implications – None.  

Tudalen y pecyn 64



Welsh Government response to the Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure 
Committee’s report on the Welsh Government’s Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

 

23 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



 

  

 

Welsh Government 

EV Strategy  
Equality Impact Assessment 
Reference: Issue  

Ver03 |  14 April 2023 
 

© GettyImages 
 
 

This report takes into account the particular instructions and requirements of our client.  It is not 
intended for and should not be relied upon by any third party and no responsibility is undertaken to 
any third party. 
 

  

Job number  286448-00 

Ove Arup & Partners Limited 
4 Pierhead Street 
Capital Waterside 
Cardiff 
CF10 4QP 
United Kingdom 
arup.com  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 66



Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited 
 

 

Document Verification 
 

Project title EV Strategy  
Document title  Equality Impact Assessment 
Job number 286448-00 
Document ref Draft 
File reference   
 
 
Revision Date Filename EqIA Draft ver01.1for issue 

Draft 06/10/22 Description Draft for client review 

 Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

Name Rowena 
Ekermawi 

Catriona 
Macdonald 

Ann Cousins 

Signature 
   

Draft  21/11/22 Filename EqIA ver02 
Description Updated draft following WG review 

 Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

Name Rowena 
Ekermawi 

Catriona 
Macdonald 

Ann Cousins 

Signature 
   

Issue 12/12/22 Filename EqIA Issue 
Description Final issue following client comments 

 Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

Name    
Signature 

   
Issue 07/02/23 Filename EqIA Issue 02 

Description Final issue following client comments 

 Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

Name Rowena 
Ekermawi 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 67



Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited 
 

Signature 
   

Issue 14/04/23 Filename EqIA Issue 03   

  Description Final issue 
following 
consultation 

  

  Signature 
 
  

      

 

Issue Document Verification with Document    
  

Tudalen y pecyn 68



Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited 
 

Contents 

 

1. Introduction 1 
1.1 Why is the Welsh Government developing an Electric Vehicle charging portfolio? 1 
1.2 Purpose of the EqIA 1 
1.3 Scope of EqIA 1 
1.4 Approach to the assessment 3 
1.5 Consultation 4 
2. EV charging portfolio 5 
2.1 Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Facilitating the transition to net zero (March 

2021) 5 
2.2 Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Action Plan (October 2021) 6 
2.3 Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure in Wales – National Standards (Autumn 2022) 7 
2.4 Preferred network (ongoing) 9 
2.5 Deliverability Plan 10 
3. Guidance and standards 11 
4. Equality impact indicators 11 
4.1 Accessibility 12 
4.2 Affordability 13 
4.3 Safety 14 
5. Baseline 15 
5.1 Population and age structure 15 
5.2 Ethnicity and language 15 
5.3 Religion and belief 16 
5.4 Disability 16 
5.5 Marriage, Civil Partnership and Sexual Orientation 16 
5.6 Economy and the Labour market 17 
5.7 Transport and travel 18 
5.8 Index of multiple deprivation 18 
6. Assessment of equality impacts 20 
7. Recommendations and action plan 28 
7.1 Future reviews of EqIA 32 
  

Tables  
Table 1 Protected characteristic groups considered in the EqIA 2 
Table 2 Actions identified in EV charging strategy Action Plan and an indication of how equality has 
been considered in the development of these actions 6 
Table 3 Good practice standards for different elements of EV charging infrastructure set out in the 
National Standards and an indication of how equality has been considered 8 
Table 4 Equality Impact Indicators used for the assessment and justification for inclusion 12 
Table 5 Equality effects identified in relation to accessibility 20 
Table 6 Equality effects identified in relation to affordability 25 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited 
 

Table 7 Equality effects identified in relation to safety 26 
Table 8 Recommended actions 28 
 
 

Figures 

Figure 1 Welsh Population by Ethnicity2 16 
Figure 2 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019) 19 
 
 

Drawings 
No table of figures entries found. 
 

Pictures  
No table of figures entries found. 
 

Photographs  
No table of figures entries found. 
 

Attachments  
No table of figures entries found. 
 

Appendices  

No table of contents entries found.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Why is the Welsh Government developing an Electric Vehicle charging 
portfolio? 

Electric vehicles have a significant role to play in securing a greener future on our roads. The Welsh 
Government (WG) is developing its approach to delivering Electric Vehicle (EV) infrastructure in Wales that 
will meet future charging demand, in the right places, at the right charging speeds and within the right 
commercial and financial environment. This is being driven by the rapid expansion in the EV market, that is 
itself being driven by the 2030 ban on the sales of new petrol and diesel.  An EV charging portfolio is 
required to establish what EV charging infrastructure is needed throughout Wales, where and how will it be 
delivered. Different approaches and studies are required to answer these questions and therefore these 
different components are referred to as the EV charging portfolio. Details of each component within the 
portfolio are set out in Section 2.  

1.2 Purpose of the EqIA 
This document is the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) which looks at the potential for the WG EV 
portfolio to result in disproportionate or differential equality effects for protected characteristic groups. It 
provides an EqIA in line with the public sector equality duty in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (the 
Act). Whilst not an EqIA requirement, the document also identifies how equality issues have been integrated 
into the development of EV charging portfolio to date.  

Under the Act, all Welsh public bodies, including the WG, have a duty to pay due regard to eliminating 
discrimination, harassment, and victimisation and to fostering good relationships between groups both in the 
workplace and wider society. The Socio-economic duty came into force on 31st March 2021 when the Welsh 
Government commenced Section 1 of the Act. This places a duty on public bodies (or those with a public 
duty) to consider how their decisions may help to reduce inequalities associated with socio-economic 
disadvantage and lead to improved outcomes for people experiencing socio-economic disadvantage.  The 
commitment to fostering equality in Wales is further strengthened through the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. One of the seven well-being goals included within the Act is the aspiration to 
create a ‘More Equal Wales’, defined as ‘a society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what 
their background or circumstances’.  

In consideration of the abovementioned legislation, this EqIA analyses the EV charging portfolio that has 
been developed to date, assessing each component for the possibility of discrimination. It also seeks to 
understand the opportunities presented to promote equality and foster good relationships between different 
groups of people with protected characteristics, as well as between those who have protected characteristics, 
and those who do not.  

The aim of the EqIA is therefore to identify whether people with protected characteristics, or who are socio-
economically disadvantaged could be affected by the various elements of the EV charging portfolio 
disproportionately or differentially: 

• Disproportionate effects arise when an impact has a proportionately greater effect on people with 
protected characteristics than the rest of the population. 

• Differential effects arise where people with protected characteristics could be affected differently 
from the rest of the population, due to a particular need or sensitivity. 

1.3 Scope of EqIA 
There are nine protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act, and which are covered by the scope of 
this EqIA: 

1. age 

2. disability 

Tudalen y pecyn 71



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

3. gender reassignment 

4. marriage and civil partnership 

5. pregnancy and maternity 

6. race 

7. religion or belief 

8. sex 

9. sexual orientation. 

In additiona to these protected characteristics and in order to meet the socio-economic duty, people who 
experience socio-economic disadvantage are also considered.  

These protected characteristics can be broken down into further groups which may assist in identifying 
where effects may occur (see Table 1). Consideration is given to all of these subgroups when assessing 
potential impacts on each of the protected characteristics.  

Table 1 Protected characteristic groups considered in the EqIA 
Protected characteristic Further subcategories within protected characteristic groups for 

consideration within the assessment 

Age Children and young people (under 19)  

Older people (aged 60+) 

Disability People with physical impairments (Includes mobility, co-ordination, lifting and 
carrying, manual dexterity, wheelchair user)  
People with communication or sensory impairments (Includes blind/partially 
sighted, deaf/hard or hearing, difficulty speaking)  
People with a learning disability, cognitive impairment or neurodiversity 
(Includes conditions which affect ability to learn, understand, read, remember, 
and concentrate e.g. Downs Syndrome, autism, ADA)  
People with mental health problems (Includes depression, schizophrenia)  
People with long standing illness/health condition (Includes cancer, HIV, MS, 
diabetes, heart disease, epilepsy, continence)  
Other disability/impairment not covered by any of the above  

Gender reassignment Transgender  

Marriage and civil 
partnership 

No further sub-categories 

Pregnancy and maternity No Further subcategories 

Race Asian or Asian British Backgrounds (This includes Pakistani, Indians and 
Bangladeshi, Chinese or any other Asian background)  
Black or Black British Backgrounds (This includes Caribbean, African or any 
other black background)  
Mixed /Multiple Ethnic Groups (This includes White and Black Caribbean, White 
and Black African, White and Asian or any other mixed background)  
White British Background (This includes English, Scottish & Welsh, Irish and 
Gypsy or Irish Travellers)  
Non-British White Backgrounds (This includes Irish, Polish, Spanish, Romanians 
and other White backgrounds)  
Arabs  
Any other background not covered by any of the above  

Religion or belief Buddhists  
Christians  
Hindus  
Jews  
Muslims  

Tudalen y pecyn 72



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

Protected characteristic Further subcategories within protected characteristic groups for 
consideration within the assessment 
Sikhs  
Lack of belief 
Others 

Sex Men 

Women 

Sexual orientation Gay men 

Lesbians 

Bisexual 
 

It should be noted that the social model for disability has been used for this assessment. This approach 
emphasises that it is not impairments themselves that cause a problem for disabled people, rather it is the 
social barriers that exist which are the main cause of problems. These barriers can include people’s attitudes 
to disability, as well as physical and organisational barriers.  

1.3.1 Geographical scope 
At this stage, the EqIA applies to the whole of Wales because the EV charging portfolio is non site specific 
and considers issues and requirements at a country level. It is recognised that different issues may have a 
greater or lesser prominence in different regions of Wales; more detailed assessments to reflect this may be 
appropriate as work on the portfolio develops.   

1.3.2 Temporal scope 
The EqIA covers outputs associated with the various elements of the EV charging portfolio that seek to meet 
the EV charging needs that need to be delivered by 2050. The assessment undertaken represents a snapshot 
of information at the time of writing; however, it is a live document and should be read accordingly.  It is 
recommended that an update is made following any changes or developments in the portfolio work.  

1.4 Approach to the assessment 
To produce a concise and proportionate assessment, the EqIA approach that has been followed includes: 

• Establishment of baseline – high level (Wales) social and demographic data is identified to 
establish the proportion of different protected characteristics and socioeconomic deprivation across 
the country.  

• Literature review – review of published literature (including grey literature, peer reviewed journals, 
government papers) to identify known issues and barriers experienced by protected 
characteristic/socioeconomically disadvantaged groups in relation to accessing electric vehicle 
infrastructure. 

• Establishment of equality impact indicators – identification of equality indicators that are used to 
guide the assessment. These are based on identification of issues and barriers identified in the 
literature review and from available feedback from existing stakeholder consultation.  

• Assessment of impacts – based on the equality impact indicators, potential equality impacts from 
the EV charging portfolio are identified. Consideration of whether these would be likely to have a 
disproportionate or differential impact on protected characteristic groups/socio-economically 
disadvantaged groups is based on a review of the evidence. Each element of the portfolio is assessed 
in turn.  

Impacts are identified as either positive or negative based on professional judgement with a 
precautionary, worst-case approach applied for uncertainties. This is supported by a narrative 
justification which whilst qualitative in nature, is determined with consideration of how the impact is 

Tudalen y pecyn 73



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

distributed across the population, the sensitivity of the receptor (i.e. protected characteristic group) 
and the likelihood of the receptor experiencing the impact.  

• Recommendations - The assessment includes a set of recommendations, which sets out the 
measures that should be put in place as the EV charging portfolio evolves, to reduce or remove 
potential adverse equality effects, to strengthen potential positive equality effects, and to ensure that, 
where possible, the strategy promotes equality of opportunity. 

The professional judgements made in this EqIA are inherently subjective and are based on the information 
available at the time of undertaking. People are, of course, more than the sum of their characteristics and it is 
acknowledged that there is significant diversity within, as well as between, the protected characteristics 
considered in this EqIA. Individuals may also have multiple protected characteristics which may interact to 
change the way in which they experience place and people. 

Nevertheless, there are ways in which broad groups of people with protected characteristics could be 
systematically disadvantaged and this process attempts to ensure that, as far as possible, the EV charging 
portfolio does not do so.  

1.5 Consultation  
Various groups and organisations representing protected characteristic groups were sent the initial version of 
the EqIA, along with the publicly available EV strategies. They were invited to a workshop to provide an 
opportunity to discuss their views and opinions of the assessment carried out and to contribute any further 
ideas relating to potential impacts. Invitees included: 

• Disability Wales 

• Bevan Foundation  

• Wellbeing of Future Generations Commissioner 

• Commissioner for Older People  

• Race Council for Wales  

• Stonewall 

• Welsh Language Commissioner  

• Mentrau Iaith Cymru  

• Menter a Busnes 

Take up of the invitation to participate in the workshop was very low and therefore further invites were sent 
to the stakeholders to invite one to one discussion.  This approach also did not result in any further interest. It 
is not clear why this should be the case.  Feedback from participants has been integrated into the assessment 
presented in this document.  

During the preparation of the EqIA of the Wales EV charging portfolio the evidence used as the basis of the 
assessment was gathered from publications and reports that have been subject to consultation, or which was 
itself specific consultation related to lived experiences of using EV infrastructure. This includes the 
following: 

• Research Institute for Disabled Consumers, July 2021. Inaccessible charging is a barrier to electric 
for disabled and older drivers1.  

 
1 Research Institute for Disabled Consumers, July 2021. Inaccessible charging is a barrier to electric for disabled and older drivers.  Available online 

at: https://www.ridc.org.uk/transport/inaccessible-charging-barrier-electric-disabled-and-older-drivers 

Tudalen y pecyn 74

https://www.ridc.org.uk/transport/inaccessible-charging-barrier-electric-disabled-and-older-drivers


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

• DfT, 2022. Consultation outcome. The consumer experience at public charge points.2 

• Cenex, January 2021 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Barriers, Project Report3.  

• British Standards Institute (BSI) – Electric vehicles- Accessible charging – Specification (PAS 
1899:2022)4: 

• OZEV Design considerations for electric vehicle charge points (2022)5 

It is considered that this indirect use of consultation feedback is appropriate for the analysis for this 
assessment. 

Further consultation will be anticipated as part of the monitoring and review process (refer to section 7.1).  

2. EV charging portfolio 

The Welsh Government EV charging portfolio includes the following workstreams: 

• Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Facilitating the transition to net zero 

• Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Action Plan 

• Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure in Wales – National Standards 

• Preferred network 

• Deliverability Plan  

More details on each of these is set out below along with a brief narrative of how issues related to equality 
have been integrated into their development.  

2.1 Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Facilitating the transition to 
net zero (March 2021) 

The Strategy sets a vision for Wales that ‘by 2025, all users of electric cars and vans in Wales are confident 
that they can access electric vehicle charging infrastructure when and where needed’. The Strategy 
recognises that where possible, home charging is the most convenient and cost-effective charging solution 
and therefore sets out a plan to require all new homes to be ready for charging whilst also providing wider 
support for those wanting to install charging at home. It is also recognised within the Strategy that there is a 
need to install fast charging at a variety of locations in order to serve those who do not have the option to 
charge at home and/or for longer journeys that cannot be completed in one charge.  This includes the 
introduction of measures that will: 

• require new non-residential buildings with more than 10 parking spaces to have a charge point by 
2025; 

 
2 DfT, 2022. Consultation outcome. The consumer experience at public charge points. Available online at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-consumer-experience-at-public-electric-vehicle-charge points/the-consumer-experience-at-
public-charge points 

3 Cenex, January 2021 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Barriers, Project Report. Available online at: 
https://www.cenex.co.uk/app/uploads/2021/04/Electric-Vehicle-Infrastructure-Barriers-FINAL.pdf  

4 PAS 1899:2022. Electric Vehicles – Accessible Charging – Specification. Available online at: https://www.bsigroup.com/en-GB/standards/pas-
1899/  

5 Office for Zero Emission Vehicles (2022). Design considerations for electric vehicle chargepoints. Available online at: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1062876/design-considerations-for-electric-
vehicle-chargepoints-print-version.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 75

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-consumer-experience-at-public-electric-vehicle-chargepoints/the-consumer-experience-at-public-chargepoints
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-consumer-experience-at-public-electric-vehicle-chargepoints/the-consumer-experience-at-public-chargepoints
https://www.cenex.co.uk/app/uploads/2021/04/Electric-Vehicle-Infrastructure-Barriers-FINAL.pdf
https://www.bsigroup.com/en-GB/standards/pas-1899/
https://www.bsigroup.com/en-GB/standards/pas-1899/


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

• require businesses to provide charging facilities at places of work; 

• require destinations to provide charging facilities for customers/visitors; 

• aim to achieve one on street charge point for every three vehicles that cannot charge at home; and 

• promote the creation of charging hubs that enable multi-modal journeys.  

 
Equality considerations 
Equality considerations have been considered during development of the Strategy evidenced through the 
promotion of: 

- improved user experience which includes all users, with various needs (particularly accessibility 
needs). This covers physical access to chargers, location, safety, and payment platforms for 
customers. The development of a national standard for charging facilities, which would include 
standards related to all these elements of user experience, is identified as a quality outcome within 
the Strategy.  

- creation of favourable conditions to promote economic development across Wales, including in 
those areas experiencing economic disadvantage. This includes community led and not for profit 
initiatives that would deliver local benefits. 

- planning for electric charging infrastructure so that it is delivered in the right place where users need 
and want it. This will enhance confidence of all users (reducing stress and range anxiety), and create 
economic opportunities in the localities of facilities. 

- WG support for EV infrastructure provision in areas that would not be commercially attractive to the 
private sector investors.  

2.2 Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Action Plan (October 2021) 
The Action Plan has been developed to support with achieving the vision set out within the EV Charging 
Strategy for Wales. The actions set out in the Action Plan are intended to be developed and implemented up 
to 2030 in line with the timeframe of the Strategy. Each of the actions identified have been assigned a 
specific timeframe of delivery, in addition to Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) which can be used to 
monitor progress toward the delivery of each of the actions.  

Equality considerations 
Actions included in the Action Plan are listed below in Table 2 alongside an indication of how equality 
issues have been acknowledged: 

Table 2 Actions identified in EV charging strategy Action Plan and an indication of how equality has been considered 
in the development of these actions 

Action from EV charging strategy 
Action Plan 

How have issues related to equality been considered in the 
development?  

Delivery of charging infrastructure 
through funding and collaboration 

 

Sets agenda for working with community partners to address the needs of 
those unable to charge at home, mobility impaired users and rural 
communities (among others – although specifics are not given). 
Commitment to support local needs. 
Commitment to integrate infrastructure that would also support public 
transport, active travel and car share schemes.  

Optimisation of energy provision 

 

No obvious consideration of equality issues.  

Enhance charging on the strategic 
trunk road network. To include 
enhanced rapid charging provision 

Recognises that the needs of mobility impaired users and rural communities 
need to be accounted for in the development of the charging network across 
Wales. Identifies that consultation with stakeholders is required to identify 
needs of users with mobility impairments and rural residents/users.  

Tudalen y pecyn 76



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

Action from EV charging strategy 
Action Plan 

How have issues related to equality been considered in the 
development?  

(every 20 miles on strategic trunk 
road network). 

 

Makes the commitment to work with Local Authorities to establish local 
needs (to align with Llwybr Newydd - the Wales Transport Strategy, 20216).  

Identifies a need for the involvement of local businesses to identify 
secondary services such as amenities and rest facilities that would enhance 
user experience. 

Develop a Welsh quality standard for 
charging infrastructure 

 

Sets the requirement that charging facilities need to be available to 
everyone, including those with accessibility needs.  

Sets the mandate that payment platforms are easy to use. 

Sets requirement for bilingual provision. 

Sets requirement for consideration of safety and security, particularly for 
users who may be more likely to feel vulnerable using the infrastructure.  

Commits to collaborating with Office for Zero Emission Vehicles (OZEV) 
to align with UK standards, and to incorporate work OZEV have done in 
relation to equality and inclusion. 

[Covered more fully in National Standards workstream; Section 2.3 below] 

Facilitating infrastructure delivery 

 

No obvious consideration of equality issues. 

Partnership and collaboration 

 

Recognises that constraints and opportunities need to be identified in 
consultation and collaboration with community-based organisations. The 
creation of a Charge Point Operator working group would facilitate this 
involvement.  

Increase awareness of the needs of 
transport decarbonisation 

 

Acknowledging that there needs to be improved access to information about 
electric vehicle charging for the general public. 

Delivery partners identified include community interest groups which would 
raise the profile of the needs of protected characteristic groups. 

Encourage investment and innovation 

 

Recognises the benefit to local communities from investment – economic 
benefit but also human capital from training opportunities.   

Maximise synergies between 
different charging needs 

 

Recognises the synergies that exist between charging hubs and other uses 
such as rural charging hubs powered by community renewable projects and 
other activities such as car share, community transport or modal 
interchanges in towns linking rail, bus and local services with active travel 
infrastructure. This recognises specific rural/socioeconomic need.  

 

2.3 Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure in Wales – National Standards 
(Autumn 2022) 

The National Standards is a guide that is aimed at public sector organisations, community enterprises and 
delivery partners involved in deploying public electric vehicle infrastructure in Wales. It sets out good 
practice standards for ‘safe, accessible, and reliable public charging for electric vehicles in Wales’.  The 
premise of the National Standards is that local charging needs, customer behaviours and demand need to be 
understood before charging points are procured. It identifies a number of factors that can influence charging 
needs and behaviours locally including: 

 
6 Llwybr Newydd – the Wales Transport Strategy 2021. Available online at: https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021  

Tudalen y pecyn 77

https://gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

- the nature of vehicle use 

- accessibility needs of customers 

- the range of the vehicle battery and charging capabilities of the vehicle 

- availability for people to use home charging 

- cost, convenience and quality of public charging 

- proximity of charge points to services and amenities 

- safety and perception of safety when using public charging 

- the length of time customers intend to stay (parked) at different charging locations.  

 
Equality considerations 
Table 3 identifies different elements of EV charging infrastructure and related best practice that is set out 
within the National Standards. A brief description is given on how issues related to equality have been 
explicitly identified and/or discussed within the narrative of the best practice.  

Table 3 Good practice standards for different elements of EV charging infrastructure set out in the National Standards 
and an indication of how equality has been considered  

Good practice standards in relation 
to various elements of EV charging 
infrastructure 

How have issues related to equality been considered in the 
development?  

Charge point types –location 
(general), charging speed, plug 
connection types and planning 
requirements 

No obvious consideration of equality issues. 

Placement of charge points – best 
practice for the how the charge 
points should be placed in any 
particular location, i.e. the 
characteristics of charge point sites 

 

Sets out that accessibility requirements for wheelchair users and users of 
mobility aids to be designed in, and that kerbside charge points should not 
cause an obstruction to wheelchair users, pushchairs or other accessibility 
needs.  

Requires that charging locations should be sufficiently lit. This provides 
safety and security for users who may be more likely to feel vulnerable 
using charge points after dark. 

Identifies desirable characteristics of a site to include creating a feeling of a 
safe environment, being in close proximity to shops, cafes, supermarkets 
and toilets, and having lighting operational throughout the night. These are 
not specifically identified as being to meet the needs of people with 
protected characteristics, but some would be likely to find them beneficial.  

Details are also given of what should not be a feature of charge point 
locations which includes sites that result in obstruction of footways, and 
which replace bays that are already allocated for disabled provision.  

Streetscape – details related to 
accessibility, design of traffic signs, 
road markings required, surface 
gradient, lighting, impact 
protection, security cameras. 

Dictates that public charge points must be accessible for everyone, 
identifying the Equality Act, 2010 as the legal protection for people with 
protected characteristics against discrimination.  

Sets out the requirements for various elements of the streetscape  

Energy and connections – 
Availability of energy supply, 
Distribution Network Operators and 
connecting to the network, 
managing connection costs, 
electrical requirements, independent 

No obvious consideration of equality issues. 

Tudalen y pecyn 78



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

Good practice standards in relation 
to various elements of EV charging 
infrastructure 

How have issues related to equality been considered in the 
development?  

connection providers, cable routing, 
supply and tariffs.  

Operation – service agreements, 
business models, health and safety, 
asset inventory and open data, 
inspection and maintenance, 
customer support, payments 
services and fees, data protection 
and cyber security, traffic regulation 
orders, managing overstay, digital 
standards, data and interoperability.  

No specific reference to equality considerations although the premise of the 
standard is that public charge points across Wales should be working and in 
good condition, whilst also providing good standards of customer service. 
For protected characteristic groups this would improve user experience and 
be especially beneficial where real time information about charger locations, 
and functionality of chargers is available.  

Additional guidance – includes 
information related to procurement 
frameworks, funding opportunities, 
existing procurement guidance, 
futureproofing infrastructure, 
passive provision, data sharing and 
management, smart charging and 
infrastructure, future grid 
requirements, vehicle to grid, 
micromobility and tracking of 
emerging solutions. 

No obvious consideration of equality issues. 

 

2.4 Preferred network (ongoing) 
There is an opportunity to proactively plan the future EV charging network in Wales; to encourage public 
and private sector investment to take place in a way that meets growing demand and provides the best value 
to Wales. To support this, Welsh Government has commissioned Arup to develop evidence to support this, in 
the form of a web-map that will help understand the geographic spread of future charging demand and 
identify priority areas for installing EV charging infrastructure.  

The demand for charging is estimated using Arup’s proprietary EV charging demand forecast model by 
drawing on a comprehensive set of Wales specific data sources. This includes National Trip End Model 
(NTEM), the National Travel Survey (NTS), census and geographical data from Office of National Statistics, 
Future Energy Scenarios (FES) from National Grid, weather data, charging behaviour data from the 
Department of Transport (DfT), Strategic Road Network (SRN) data, and internal Arup data regarding user 
charging capability and behaviour. The model uses these data to develop scenarios of forecasts and spatial 
distribution of charging infrastructure across Wales at the Lower Layer Super Output Area (LSOA) level. 
The model develops future charging demand estimates for two different user behaviours: destination 
charging, and on-route charging. The spatial energy demand outputs are then combined with additional data 
relating to existing provision, grid and socio-economics to create the combined web map outputs.  

The analysis is being conducted at a level appropriate to strategic, national-level decisions – so areas for 
charging infrastructure will be identified, but not specific sites. There are a number of strategic decisions that 
will need to be made to determine priorities and preferred locations, and so in the first instance a number of 
scenarios will be presented to enable discussion and decision-making. 

The preferred network has been established using a number of different data sets which have been overlain 
with each other at the spatial level of Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA) and assessed against three 
scenarios including: 

Tudalen y pecyn 79



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

1. Commercially attractive - 70% weighting given to areas where there is a gap in provision 
(outstanding EV demand) and 30% weighting given to areas with high substation capacity (high 
headroom availability)   

2. Where additional grid would be useful - 70% weighting given to areas where there is a gap in 
provision (outstanding EV demand) and 30% weighting given to areas with low substation capacity 
(low headroom availability)   

3. Where WG need to prioritise - 50% weighting given to areas where there is a gap in provision 
(outstanding EV demand) and 25% weighting given to areas identified as most deprived by the 
Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation and 25% weighting given to areas considered to be most rural 
(rurality)  

Data sets used in the modelling include: 

- destination charging demand predicted for 2039  

- on-street charging demand predicted for 2039 

- on-route charging demand predicted for 2039  

- existing charging provision 

- Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 

- details of the Strategic Road Network 

- details of publicly-owned land 

- population centres  

- current grid capacity data of Distribution Network Operators in Wales (Western Power Distribution 
and Scottish Power Energy Networks)  

Assumptions applied to the demand predictions include assumptions on whether home charging is an option, 
type of chargers likely required at different locations (3kW (slow) for all home chargers and 7-22kW (fast) 
for on-street chargers), average annual mileage, average battery size, EV efficiency, and existing government 
incentives that will provide charging for up to 50% of vehicles that cannot charge at home. These 
assumptions have been fed into the modelling that has been used to predict destination, on-street and on-
route charging demand.  

Equality considerations 
The development of the Preferred Network has included consideration of the Welsh Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (WIMD) within the model. The WIMD is the official measure of relative deprivation for small 
areas of Wales and is designed to identify areas where there are the highest concentrations of deprivation. 
The WIMD is based on eight separate domains (types) of deprivation and includes income, employment, 
health, education, access to services, housing, community safety and physical environment.  Rurality has also 
been considered within the modelling. The objective is to use this data to identify areas that might most 
justify public sector intervention to reduce inequality impacts.   

2.5 Deliverability Plan  
The Deliverability Plan concerns how the EV Charging Strategy for Wales will be delivered and 
implemented. It focuses on the following ‘cases’: 

• Financial case – this is the total capital cost of charging infrastructure required to meet projected 
demand. The bearer of the capital cost – whether it be public or private, or any combination thereof – 
is not considered at this stage. 

• Commercial case – what the commercial arrangements of the Strategy are. It explores the EV 
charging value chain, and the different options for the WG role in the value chain, or other 

(based on understanding of different 
battery sizes and starting charge levels) 

Tudalen y pecyn 80



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

interventions in the market. It explores whether there might be different commercial arrangements 
for different areas (i.e. urban / rural) or charging modes. 

• Management case – this looks at the management arrangements that should be put in place for the 
successful delivery of the Strategy.  

The Deliverability Plan does not include financial modelling for specific sites, but rather a high-level 
portfolio capital costing exercise will be undertaken, taking into consideration the location types, destination 
(which includes on-street and multi-model hub charging), and on-route charging.  

Equality considerations 
There is currently no specific evaluation of equality issues within the Deliverability Plan. However, equality 
of network coverage, equality of access to infrastructure, equality of pricing, and national standards are all 
key considerations of the commercial case.  

3. Guidance and standards 

The following section sets out the relevant guidance and standards that have been developed in relation to 
EV charging infrastructure and considerations of accessibility: 

• British Standards Institute (BSI) – Electric vehicles- Accessible charging – Specification (PAS 
1899): This covers requirements for the provision of accessible public charge points for EVs for all 
potential users, including disabled people and older people. This has been developed in collaboration 
with Motability.  

• OZEV Design considerations for electric vehicle charge points (2022): This sets out design 
considerations for public charge points that will improve the user experience. Includes charge point 
recognition details, payment, cable and socket management, accessible design, product maintenance 
and end-of-life, and installation and setting. 

• Consumer Experience at public charge points, Department for Transport (DfT) (2022): 
Following consultation, regulation is to be laid before parliament to mandate minimum standards in 
relation to a minimum payment method, consistency of payment metric across the public network, 
industry-led payment roaming, open and some dynamic data to be made available to customers and 
reliability of rapid charge points.  

 

4. Equality impact indicators 

The role of the EqIA is to identify where changes associated with the EV charging portfolio may result in 
disproportionate or differential impacts, particularly in relation to groups within the community that have 
protected characteristics. In order to achieve this, framing the assessment in relation to selected equality 
impact indictors is an effective approach, providing focus and consistency to the assessment.  

In relation to EV charging infrastructure, issues that appear most frequently in the literature include 
consideration of accessibility to the infrastructure, affordability for individuals and personal safety when 
utilising EV charging provision.  Table 4 provides a summary of why each of the EqIA impact indicators has 
been selected for use in the assessment with more narrative around the evidence base for this selection in 
Sections 4.1 – 4.3. 

Tudalen y pecyn 81



Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

Table 4 Equality Impact Indicators used for the assessment and justification for inclusion  
EqIA impact 
indicators  

Includes Justification for inclusion 

Accessibility Access to charging 
infrastructure/ the 
design/location/signage 

Accessibility (or ease of access) to charging infrastructure includes 
the physical location of charging points and how easy it is for 
someone to access these locations conveniently without needing to 
go out of their way either on route or at their destination/starting 
point. It also includes the design of the charge points themselves and 
how accessible they are for different people as well as the signage 
surrounding the charge points. For example, a wheelchair user will 
require charge points that can be accessed from a seated position and 
without any obstructions to wheelchairs.   

Affordability Charging approach (i.e. 
how units of electricity are 
charged, payment options, 
affordability of on 
street/destination charging) 

 

How much units of electricity are charged at different charging 
points and also the method of payment contributes to how affordable 
and accessible charging is for an individual. Where there is a 
requirement to use a smart phone, or to be signed up to a particular 
payment method can influence how affordable (or at least accessible 
in terms of ability to pay by a particular method).   

This indicator does not include consideration of affordability of EVs 
themselves. Whilst this is an equality issue in itself, it is separate 
from the affordability of charging and how people are able to access 
this.  

Safety Design/lighting/perceptions 
of safety 

The physical design of charging infrastructure may result in adverse 
safety issues, for example if there are trip hazards, or the ground 
surface material becomes slippery when wet. The layout can also 
influence the location of charging infrastructure in relation to other 
people and services; if they are placed in a more distant location, this 
can leave some people feeling vulnerable. The lighting available also 
influences the safety, and practically, the ability to operate units in 
conditions of darkness.  

 

4.1 Accessibility 
Accessibility relates to the ease with which people are able to reach and use the public charging 
infrastructure. Different groups of people have different accessibility requirements, and in order to provide 
EV charging infrastructure that is accessible to everyone, the user experience of all needs to be taken into 
account, with designs reflecting as many accessibility requirements as possible. To date, accessibility 
barriers are frequently experienced by disabled users, and these have been widely reported in a number of 
published research findings. For example, in a survey carried out by the Research Institute for Disabled 
Consumers in 20217, it was found that 61% of disabled people would consider buying an electric vehicle if 
charging were made more accessible. A number of aspects of charging that present as barriers to this group 
were identified as including: 

• Charging cables - 54% identified lifting a cable from the boot of the car and then needing to close 
the boot as being difficult or very difficult for them to do. 

• Manoeuvrability - 41% identified cable manoeuvring from/to the charge point would be 
difficult/very difficult to do. The heavy weight of the cables contributes to this. 

• Physical barriers - 66% identified space or trip hazards/barriers around the car and charger as being 
difficult or very difficult to navigate (not enough space to open doors fully to get wheelchair 

 
7 Research Institute for Disabled Consumers, July 2021. Inaccessible charging is a barrier to electric for disabled and older drivers. Available online 

at: https://www.ridc.org.uk/transport/inaccessible-charging-barrier-electric-disabled-and-older-drivers . 

Tudalen y pecyn 82

https://www.ridc.org.uk/transport/inaccessible-charging-barrier-electric-disabled-and-older-drivers


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

alongside the car, bollards around the charge point meaning wheelchairs can’t get close enough to 
them). 

Whilst the first two points are more related to the design of the cars themselves, they are still relevant for 
consideration in how public charge points can be made more accessible to address these concerns. This 
feedback mirrors that received from the DfT consultation on consumer experience at public charge points8 
which identified that existing infrastructure is not accessible for a large proportion of disabled people who 
experience difficulty with mobility or dexterity. This is identified as being a result of a range of factors 
including lack of dropped kerbs making access with wheelchairs and mobility aids difficult, height of 
connection points being too high for wheelchair users, and height and angle of payment screens resulting in 
wheelchair users not being able to view them therefore making the charging transaction difficult.  More 
widely, accessibility barriers for people with impaired mobility have been identified as including the 
following7,9,10: 

• Lack of clarity and consistency of signage and ground markings  

• Lack of tethered cables (at charge point end) to simplify connection and mitigate issues of moving 
heavy cables 

• Lack of lighting around charge points 

• Lack of human assistance on site or by phone 

• Lack of up-to-date information in journey planning apps on location of disabled-adapted charge 
points and whether they are in service and/or occupied at a particular point in time 

• Lack of weather protection at charge points.  

Reliance on public charge points for people living in apartments and houses without private connection 
points means that this group of people are already at a disadvantage in terms of ease of access to charge 
points.  Low- and middle-income earners are more likely to live in properties that do not provide options for 
private charge points and therefore this group are particularly affected by accessibility issues regardless of 
whether they experience additional barriers as a result of disability or age.  

 

4.2 Affordability 
The average cost to buy an electric car in the UK in March 2022 was approximately £44,000 (£26,965 
average for non-luxury models)11 which puts purchase of EVs beyond the affordability of many low- and 
middle-income earners.  For disabled drivers this can be compounded by the additional costs of any 
modifications they may need on the vehicle. These costs, which are higher than equivalent petrol and diesel 
cars, creates an embedded social justice barrier to accessing EVs; however, in terms of affordability in the 
context of the charging infrastructure itself, on street public charging has a higher cost than home charging 
(with some research showing as much as a ten times difference12). This is partly due to the faster charge rates 
and the charge points being commercially run for profit, but is also a result of higher rates of VAT being 
charged for electricity from public charge points (20%) than home charging (5%). This means that people 

 
8 DfT, 2022. Consultation outcome. The consumer experience at public charge points. Available online at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-consumer-experience-at-public-electric-vehicle-charge points/the-consumer-experience-at-
public-charge points  

9 Catapult Energy Systems, March 2022. Equal EV Phase 2: Technology viability and future services for vulnerable customers.  

10 The ‘missed opportunity’ of EV charging accessibility, 5th May 2022. Article by Current.  Available online at: https://www.current-
news.co.uk/blogs/the-missed-opportunity-of-ev-charging-accessibility  

11 Average cost of an electric car UK 2022. NimbleFins, March 2022. Available online: https://www.nimblefins.co.uk/average-cost-electric-car-uk  

12 The Guardian, Article, March 2020. Public EV Charging up to 10 times more expensive than home charging. Available online at: 
https://www.banburyguardian.co.uk/lifestyle/cars/public-ev-charging-up-to-10-times-more-expensive-than-at-home-2449162  

Tudalen y pecyn 83

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-consumer-experience-at-public-electric-vehicle-chargepoints/the-consumer-experience-at-public-chargepoints
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-consumer-experience-at-public-electric-vehicle-chargepoints/the-consumer-experience-at-public-chargepoints
https://www.current-news.co.uk/blogs/the-missed-opportunity-of-ev-charging-accessibility
https://www.current-news.co.uk/blogs/the-missed-opportunity-of-ev-charging-accessibility
https://www.nimblefins.co.uk/average-cost-electric-car-uk
https://www.banburyguardian.co.uk/lifestyle/cars/public-ev-charging-up-to-10-times-more-expensive-than-at-home-2449162


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

who do not have access to home charging are disadvantaged, both from a cost perspective and also from the 
lack of investment in urban area public charge points where perceived competition from home charging 
hinders investment13. As people who are low- or middle-income earners are more likely to live in properties 
that do not have access to home charging, this compounds the affordability issue.  

Car ownership varies considerably for those who share protected characteristics. The National Survey for 
Wales shows that of those in the 20% most deprived households in Wales, only 65% of households have use 
of a car compared to 89% of households within the 20% least deprived14. Affordability is a major factor in 
these statistics with the average cost of a new small car in February 2021 being £15,450 and £23,185 for a 
medium sized car (with second-hand models likely to be considerably less)15. With average prices for a small 
and medium-sized internal combustion engine vehicles (ICE) lower than the average for a non-luxury EV 
model, EVs appear even more unaffordable for those households unable to afford an ICE car.  

A survey by DfT16  shows that in the UK car ownership levels are lower amongst Black, Asian and Minority 
Ethnic groups; 29% of Black people had no access to a car or van compared to 14% of White people in 2020. 
These statistics suggest that some people with particular protected characteristics are more likely to be reliant 
on public transport and taxis to meet their travel needs. For taxis in particular, the transition to EV will 
require that public EV charging infrastructure is also readily available and accessible for this sector.   

The outcomes from the DfT consultation on consumer experience at public charge points also identifies lack 
of clarity on how much units of electricity cost at these locations, to be a barrier to how confident people feel 
when using them8. Different methods of tariff setting leads to confusion for all users but particularly for 
people who experience anxiety and those who are newcomers to the EV market.  Further to this, different EV 
charge point operators (CPOs) offer a ‘pay-as-you-go’ tariff which requires a user to sign up to their 
particular platform in order to access cheaper tariffs. This adds complexity to usage tariffs (which then differ 
between different CPOs) which may act as a deterrent for those people who may be dissuaded from using 
EVs by this complexity, and also impacts on affordability for users13. 

Currently, many public charge points require the use of a smart phone to access payment. This puts people 
who do not own a smartphone at a disadvantage. Whilst 86% of 16-24 year olds had a smart phone in 2021, 
for people over 55, this reduces to 78%17. 

4.3 Safety 
It is recognised that people’s safety is put at risk if their vehicle runs out of charge. It is therefore important 
that EV users are able to access functioning and well-maintained public EV charge points. The worry related 
to running out of charge before being able to find a suitable charge point is known as ‘range anxiety’, and 
affects everyone, but particularly those who are more prone to anxiety and/or who are inexperienced EV 
drivers. It is estimated that 6.6% of adults in the UK have high levels of anxiety in any given week and how 
these people engage with EVs is not widely recognised9.  

In the DfT customer experience consultation, most respondents stated that improved lighting was necessary 
for consumer safety and positive consumer experience when charging8, with women in particular raising this 
as a concern in relation to safety. Disabled users have also identified lighting as a barrier to accessibility10. 
Whilst this is not necessarily in relation to safety concerns, the lack of adequate lighting undoubtedly makes 
the charging environment more hazardous for disabled people and older people with mobility difficulties. As 

 
13 Cenex, January 2021 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Barriers, Project Report. Available online at: 

https://www.cenex.co.uk/app/uploads/2021/04/Electric-Vehicle-Infrastructure-Barriers-FINAL.pdf  

14 Welsh Government (2014) National Survey for Wales - Transport  
15 Average cost of cars UK 2021. NimbleFins, February 2021. Available online: https://www.nimblefins.co.uk/cheap-car-insurance/average-cost-cars-

uk  

16 Department for Transport, 2021. Travel by vehicle availability, income, ethnic group, household type, mobility status and NS-SEC. 

17 Statistica Research, 2021. Share of adults who own a smartphone in the United Kingdom (UK) in 2008 and 2019 to 2021, by demographics. 
Available online at: https://www.statista.com/statistics/956297/ownership-of-smartphones-uk/ 

Tudalen y pecyn 84

https://www.cenex.co.uk/app/uploads/2021/04/Electric-Vehicle-Infrastructure-Barriers-FINAL.pdf
https://www.nimblefins.co.uk/cheap-car-insurance/average-cost-cars-uk
https://www.nimblefins.co.uk/cheap-car-insurance/average-cost-cars-uk


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

well as lighting, weather protection was identified by consumers as being required to enable them to feel 
more comfortable and safer during charging.  

A further barrier identified includes charge points that are far from other amenities that people wish to use 
whilst their vehicle is charging. This is relevant for all users, but particularly for disabled people and older 
people who are more likely to find getting to amenities further away more difficult and may result in these 
users feeling more vulnerable or isolated7.  

5. Baseline 

This section provides a general baseline in relation to protected characteristics in Wales, including 
consideration of socio-economic data, in particular related to areas of socioeconomic deprivation.  EV 
charging infrastructure needs to be accessible to the whole population, however by including a baseline of 
data related to groups within the population helps to provide an understanding of the scale of accessibility 
requirements that need to be taking into consideration in the development of EV infrastructure related policy 
and actions.  The most recent available, published data is presented. At time of writing there is very limited 
data released from the 2021 census.  

5.1 Population and age structure 
The population of Wales on 21st March 2021 was 3,107,500, with a population density of 152.9 persons per 
square km18. Wales has a slightly higher female population, representing 51.1% of the population with 
48.9% being male18.  

The population of Wales has increased by 1.4% since the previous census in 2011. There is a higher 
percentage change in the 65+ age group compared to both the age groups 0-15 and 16-64. There has been a 
2.9% increase in the 65+ group, compared to the decrease for both 0-15 and 16-64 groups (-0.4% and -2.5% 
respectively) from 2011 to 2021.  

In the 2021 census 21.3% of Wales’ population was over 65, 62.2% of the population is 15-64 and 16.5% is 
under 15 years.  

5.2 Ethnicity and language 
The dominant ethnicity in Wales is White (95.5%), followed by Asian/Asian British (2.2%) (see Figure 1) 19. 
Most households in Wales have English as the primary language. According to Welsh language use surveys, 
in 2019-20, 22% of the population aged over three years classed themselves as Welsh speakers20.  Welsh 
language ability was highest for those aged 3 to 15 at 37%, and lowest for those aged 65 or older at 17%. 
Geographically, North West Wales has the highest proportion of Welsh speakers (50-59%), with Mid Wales 
having 40-49%, South West Wales 30-39% and North East and South East having the lowest proportion at 0-
19%. However, it should be noted that these statistics include all levels of fluency.  

 

 
18 Office for National Statistics, 2022. Usual resident population in Wales, Census 2021. 
19 Nomis, 2011. Ethnic Group data set KS201UK. Available online at: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/asv2htm  
20 Welsh Government, 2020. Welsh in the home and in education (Welsh language use survey): July 2019 – March 2020 – Available online at: 
https://gov.wales/welsh-home-and-education-welsh-language-use-survey-july-2019-march-2020-html#section-91120    

Tudalen y pecyn 85

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/asv2htm
https://gov.wales/welsh-home-and-education-welsh-language-use-survey-july-2019-march-2020-html#section-91120


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

 
Figure 1 Welsh Population by Ethnicity19 

5.3 Religion and belief 
Annual population survey data identifies that 49.9% of the Welsh population considers themselves to have 
no religion. This compares to 45.8% of the population identifying as Christian, and 2.4% of the population 
identifying as other religions including Islam, Judaism, Buddhism, Hinduism and Sikhism21.  

5.4 Disability  
In 2018-2020 there was an estimated total of 422,300 people aged 16-65 in Wales who were disabled22. Of 
this population, 55.8% were female and 44.2% were male. The majority of those aged 16-65 who are classed 
as disabled were in the 45-65 age group.  There are an estimated 370,230 registered carers in Wales23 with 
research by Carers Wales estimating that 220,000 carers are in paid work alongside their caring 
responsibilities24. 

5.5 Marriage, Civil Partnership and Sexual Orientation  
According to 2011 census data 46.6% of the Welsh population is married whilst 0.2% of the population are 
in a same-sex civil partnership25. Over five years to 2019, the proportion of the Welsh population identifying 
as lesbian, gay or bisexual has increased from 1.6% in 2014 to 2.9% in 201926. ONS data has found that in 

 
21 StatsWales, 2018-2020 - Religion by region. Available online at: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-Diversity/Religion/religion-

by-region  

22 Welsh Government, 2022. Stats Wales: Disability by Age and Sex. Available online at https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-
Diversity/Disability/disabilitystatus-by-age-sex  

23 Carers Wales, 2014. Facts & Figures. Available online at: https://www.carersuk.org/wales/about-us/facts-and-figures  

24 Carers Wales, 2019. Number of carers juggling paid work and care across Wales increases to 220,000. Available online at: 
https://www.carersuk.org/wales/news-campaigns/news/number-of-carers-juggling-paid-work-and-care-across-wales-increases-to-220-000  

25 ONS, 2011. Marital and civil partnership status 

26 Welsh Government, 2021. Sexual Orientation. Available online at: https://gov.wales/sexual-orientation-2019  

Welsh Population by Ethnicity (2011 Census)

White Mixed/multiple ethnic group: Total

Asian/Asian British Black/African/Caribbean/Black British

Other ethnic group

Tudalen y pecyn 86

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-Diversity/Religion/religion-by-region
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-Diversity/Religion/religion-by-region
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-Diversity/Disability/disabilitystatus-by-age-sex
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-Diversity/Disability/disabilitystatus-by-age-sex
https://www.carersuk.org/wales/about-us/facts-and-figures
https://www.carersuk.org/wales/news-campaigns/news/number-of-carers-juggling-paid-work-and-care-across-wales-increases-to-220-000
https://gov.wales/sexual-orientation-2019


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

the UK statistically 16-24-year-olds are the most likely to identify as lesbian, gay, or bisexual and a higher 
proportion of men identify as gay27.  

5.6 Economy and the Labour market  
At the end of 2021, the Welsh Government recorded an economic activity rate for those of working age (16-
64) of 76.4%.28. The remaining 23.6% of the population were economically inactive. The most common 
reason for economic inactivity for males in Wales in 2020-21 was being a student. This was closely followed 
by long-term sickness accounting for 31.2% of all economically inactive male, down by 1.7 percentage 
points from a year earlier but well above the UK proportion (28.0%)29. 

The most common reason for economic inactivity for women in Wales in 2020-21 was long-term sickness, 
accounting for 25.7% of all economically inactive women in Wales. Over the same period of 2020-2021, 
there was a rise in the proportion of students and a fall in those looking after family, accounting for 23.9% 
and 23.3% of all economically inactive women, respectively29. 

In terms of qualifications, 41.4% of the Welsh population have an NVQ Level 4 (i.e. degree level) 
qualification and above compared to 7.3% of the population who have no qualifications.30  

Average gross weekly earnings in Wales for full time workers was £562.80 per week in 2020. If broken 
down by gender the average weekly pay for full time male workers is £565.00 whilst for female workers, the 
figure is £513.30.31 

There is also a considerable pay gap in relation to those with an impairment. Research in the UK indicates 
that the size of the ‘disability pay gap’ varies depending on the exact type and nature of the disability. As an 
example, data shows that disabled men and men with learning difficulties have a pay gap of approximately 
60%. The difference between non-disabled female workers earnings and that of a woman with a physical 
impairment can vary between 8% and 18% depending on the type of employment32.  

Variations in earnings are also significant for Black, Asian and Ethnic minority households with evidence 
suggesting that for example, typical Bangladeshi household incomes being 35% less than the White British 
median and typical Black African household incomes being 22% lower than the White British median33.  

The average salary in Wales is £31,900 per year34. In 2020 the low-income threshold for a couple is £14,800 
(after housing costs)35.   

 
27 ONS, 2019. Sexual Orientation, UK, 2019. Available online at: 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2019  

28 Welsh Government, 2021. Stats Wales: Economic activity rate by Welsh local area and year. Available online at: 
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Persons-
Employed/economicactivityrate-by-welshlocalarea-year  

29 Welsh Government, 2021. Labour market analysis by protected characteristic (Annual Population Survey): April 2004 – March 2021. Available 
online at: https://gov.wales/labour-market-analysis-protected-characteristics-annual-population-survey-april-2004-march-2021-html  

30 Welsh Government, 2021. Stats Wales: Highest qualification level of working age adults by region and local authority. Available online at: 
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Data-For-Regions-of-
Wales/highestqualificationlevelofworkingageadults-by-region-localauthority  

31 Welsh Government, 2021. Stats Wales: Gender Pay Differences in Wales. Available online at: 
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Earnings/genderpaydifferenceinwales-by-year  

32 Equality and Human Rights Commission (2017) The Disability Pay Gap  

33 Corlett, A. (2017) Diverse Outcomes: Living Standards by Ethnicity  

34 Plumplot, 2021. Wales average salary comparison. Available online at: https://www.plumplot.co.uk/Wales-salary-and-unemployment.html  

35 People in low income households, 2022. Available at: ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/work-pay-and-benefits/pay-and-income/people-in-low-
income-households/latest  

Tudalen y pecyn 87

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2019
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/economicactivityrate-by-welshlocalarea-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/economicactivityrate-by-welshlocalarea-year
https://gov.wales/labour-market-analysis-protected-characteristics-annual-population-survey-april-2004-march-2021-html
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Data-For-Regions-of-Wales/highestqualificationlevelofworkingageadults-by-region-localauthority
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Data-For-Regions-of-Wales/highestqualificationlevelofworkingageadults-by-region-localauthority
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/genderpaydifferenceinwales-by-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/genderpaydifferenceinwales-by-year
https://www.plumplot.co.uk/Wales-salary-and-unemployment.html


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

5.7 Transport and travel  
In 2011, 22.9% of households in Wales did not have access to a car (or van)36. There is a large difference 
between urban and rural areas with 26.3% of households in urban areas and 16.2% of households in rural 
areas not having access to a car (or van).  34.1% of households had access to two or more cars/vans in 2011. 
More recent data is not currently available from the 2021 census.   

Car ownership varies considerably for those who share protected characteristics and for different socio-
economic groups. The National Survey for Wales shows that of those in the 20% most deprived households 
in Wales, only 65% of households have use of a car compared to 89% of households within the 20% least 
deprived37. 

A survey by DfT shows in that in the UK, car ownership levels are lower amongst Black, Asian and Minority 
Ethnic groups. 29% of Black people had no access to a car or van compared to 14% of White people in 
2020.38 

Disabled people are more likely to be in a household without access to a car and in households with access to 
a car they are less likely to be a driver. 55% of disabled people aged 17-64 held a full driving licence in 
2020, compared with 83% of non-disabled people.39 

It has also been reported that women only account for 35% of registered car keepers in the UK40 and that 
27% of adults aged 17 years and over did not hold a full car driving licence in 2016.41  

The majority of those in employment in the UK drive to work (67.4%), 6.6% use bus or train, 10% walk on 
foot while 0.5% of people use a taxi to travel to work. Urban areas make up the majority of the population 
that use a taxi to go to work (84.1%)42. These data are now relatively old (2011), but do still serve as an 
approximation of travel behaviours.  

In terms of accessing other services (outside of employment), the National Survey for Wales carried out by 
the WG surveyed how easy people found accessing key infrastructure. This research found that older people 
(particularly those aged 75 and over) found it more difficult to get to hospital compared to younger people, 
and that getting to hospital was generally considered to be easier by those who had access to a car. For 
example, of those surveyed only 3% of those with a car said it was ‘very difficult’ to get to hospital, 
compared to 10% of those without43.  

5.8 Index of multiple deprivation  
The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) is the WG’s official measure of relative deprivation for 
small areas in Wales (Lower-layer Super output Areas (LSOA) typically comprising of 1,600 people). The 
WIMD ranks these LSOAs from 1 (most deprived) to 1,909 (least deprived) and there are numerous 
indicators that feed into the WIMD including income, employment, health, education, access to services, 
community safety, physical environment and housing. Communities that are in the most deprived areas are 

 
36 ONS (2011) 2011 Census Data - QS416EW - Car or van availability.  

37 Welsh Government (2014) National Survey for Wales - Transport  

38 Department for Transport, 2021. Travel by vehicle availability, income, ethnic group, household type, mobility status and NS-SEC. 

39 Department for Transport, 2021. Transport: Disability and Accessibility Statistics, England 2020 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1019477/transport-disability-and-
accessibility-statistics-england-2020.pdf  

40 Department for Transport, 2021. Vehicle Licensing Statistics: Annual 2020 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/985555/vehicle-licensing-
statistics-2020.pdf  

41 Department for Transport, 2021. Transport: Disability and Accessibility Statistics, England 2020 

42 ONS, 2011. Census data QS701EW – method of travel to work  https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/qs701ew 
43 Welsh Government (2014) National Survey for Wales – Transport. Available online at: 

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Transport  

Tudalen y pecyn 88

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1019477/transport-disability-and-accessibility-statistics-england-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1019477/transport-disability-and-accessibility-statistics-england-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/985555/vehicle-licensing-statistics-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/985555/vehicle-licensing-statistics-2020.pdf
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/qs701ew
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Transport


Welsh Government    
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment   
 

likely to be the most reliant on taxi services that would enable people who experience socio-economic 
disadvantage to reach opportunities for education, training, and employment, as well as for social and 
cultural opportunities.  

 

 

Figure 2 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (2019)44 

 
44 Welsh Government - Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation. Available online at: https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-

research/2019-11/welsh-index-multiple-deprivation-2019-results-report-024.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 89



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 20 
 

6. Assessment of equality impacts 

This section assesses each of the EV charging portfolio elements against the equality indicators identified in Section 5 of this report (Table 5: Accessibility; Table 6 
Affordability; Table 7 Safety). Recommendations on mitigation or how positive effects could be enhanced are set out in Section 7.  
Table 5 Equality effects identified in relation to accessibility  

Accessibility  
Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential negative equality effects  
Electric Vehicle charging 
Strategy – Facilitating the 
transition to net zero 

The strategy sets the stage for the development of national standards 
which would improve accessibility for all users. This includes those 
with accessibility needs, such as those experienced by wheelchair 
users or users of other mobility aids. This would result in positive 
effects for disabled people and older people.  
 

Focus on disability may miss accessibility needs of other groups such 
as women or older people.  

Locating charging infrastructure near amenities can help with journey 
planning as people are able to combine vehicle charging with other 
activities that they need, or want, to do. It also provides opportunities 
to use amenities such as cafes to simply sit and wait whilst their 
vehicles charge, providing a safe and comfortable waiting option. 
Having close amenities will remove some of the anxiety that some 
users such as disabled people, women, pregnant women and 
transgender people may be more likely to feel about charging their 
vehicles. It will also improve the charging experience for all users.  

If the majority of charging infrastructure is located close to popular 
amenities, this may preclude locations in other places that would be 
helpful to some protected characteristics groups. For example, 
community halls and medical facilities and other locations that may be 
more frequented by protected characteristic groups such as disabled 
people, young people, pregnant women and women with young 
children. This would result in insufficient charging options at such 
locations.  

Where community led and not for profit initiatives are involved in 
provision of EV charging infrastructure this is likely to bring positive 
effects to economically deprived areas. There are often 
disproportionate numbers of people with protected characteristics in 
areas of economic deprivation who would therefore benefit. 

Economic development as a result of EV infrastructure such as 
attracting new businesses and innovation, may not be equally 
distributed, resulting in the potential for some communities to be left 
behind in terms of these economic benefits in their areas. This would 
result in further economic differentiation between more economically 
deprived areas of Wales and richer areas.  

WG support for EV infrastructure in locations that are commercially 
unattractive would provide access for people within economically 
deprived areas of Wales. It would also be positive for access at 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 90



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 21 
 

Accessibility  
Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential negative equality effects 

locations that serve facilities such as healthcare and community 
services that are used by people with protected characteristics, but 
which are unlikely to be commercially attractive.  

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Strategy – Action Plan 

Working in collaboration with a wide range of community partners 
will mean that a range of opinions and needs are identified and 
integrated into the design and delivery of charging infrastructure. 
This would be positive for all protected characteristic groups.  

 

The Action Plan sets out a commitment to integrate EV charging 
infrastructure that would also support sustainable transport options 
including public transport, active travel and car share schemes. These 
are considered to impact on wider determinants of health such as 
physical activity, access to employment and social networks (i.e. 
building blocks of health), the promotion of which would be positive 
for all people, but particularly those with protected characteristics 
and those who experience economic disadvantage who use these 
travel options more frequently than those who do not.   

 

Enhancing charging provision on the strategic trunk road network (to 
include rapid chargers every 20 miles) will improve access for people 
with protected characteristics, but it would not be a disproportionate 
or differential effect.      

 

The action to develop a Welsh quality standard for charging 
infrastructure will result in positive effects on protected characteristic 
groups, particular those with accessibility needs such as disabled 
people, pregnant women and women with young children requiring 
prams and pushchairs, as their needs will have been accounted for in 
the design, location and management of the facilities, therefore 
improving the user experience. [More detail given below under 
National Standards]. 

See below under National Standards  

Increasing access to information about electric vehicle charging for 
the general public will also be positive for protected characteristic 
groups provided that the information itself is accessible to these 
groups. However, it is unlikely to be a disproportionate or differential 
effect.  

 

T
udalen y pecyn 91



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 22 
 

Accessibility  
Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential negative equality effects 

Maximising synergies between charging hubs and other uses and 
activities such as renewable projects, car share, community transport 
or modal interchanges in towns linking rail, bus and local services 
with active travel infrastructure will bring positive effects for 
economically disadvantaged and rural communities which would be 
disproportionate to the benefits in areas that already have high (or 
higher) levels of service provision.  

 

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure in Wales – 
National Standards 

Accessibility requirements for wheelchair users and users of mobility 
aids in relation to the placement of charge points is 
disproportionately positive for disabled people, older people and 
people who may be using mobility aids temporarily. It would also 
benefit women/men with young children using prams and pushchairs.  

There is no requirement for shelter to be provided over charge points to 
protect users from inclement weather conditions (particularly rain). For 
disabled people, older people and pregnant women, this would be 
disproportionately negative because they may require longer to set up 
the charging and may be less able to quickly (and conveniently) protect 
themselves against the elements. This lack of protection against the 
weather would reduce charging choice for this group of people.  

Details are set out in the National Standard that dictate various 
elements of the streetscape of charge points. This includes details of 
road markings, traffic sign design, surface gradients, lighting, impact 
protection (for charge points) and security cameras. 
Welsh language is required on all signs, with Welsh before English, 
as required by the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, 2011. 
Language is covered under race/nationality as a protected 
characteristic, therefore this requirement is positive for Welsh 
speakers and contributes towards maintaining and enhancing national 
identity. It will be differentially positive for communities that have 
Welsh as a first language and who may not have strong literacy in 
English (predominantly rural).  
 

Multiple languages on signs can be confusing and could 
disproportionately negatively affect older people and people for whom 
Welsh or English is not a strong language and for people who struggle 
with visual clutter.   
 
 
 

Standard design of traffic signs and road markings is set out within 
the National Standards. This will bring positive effects for everyone 
as it will become easier to quickly identify charging locations. 
However, it would be disproportionately beneficial for older people 
who show preference for consistency and familiarity and for people 

New / unfamiliar signage could cause anxiety or put people off using 
this infrastructure. 

T
udalen y pecyn 92



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 23 
 

Accessibility  
Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential negative equality effects 

who get confused easily and/or are likely to experience anxiety about 
navigating a new or unfamiliar road layout. 
 

Surface gradients are dictated by BSI standards in relation to 
accessible bays and dropped kerb access must be within 8m of the 
accessible bay. This is differentially beneficial for disabled people 
(wheelchair users, people using mobility aids) as well as people with 
young children using prams and pushchairs.  However, this is only 
the case where access to these dropped kerbs is not impeded (by 
another parked vehicle for example).  

 

 It is recommended in the National Standards that impact protection 
should be provided at sites where the charge point is at higher risk of 
being impacted by a vehicle or where the charge points are high-
powered and/or high value. Recognition is given that protection 
(bollards or bump stops) should not make access for people with 
mobility issues or wheelchair users difficult. However, no details are 
given on how these should be located to avoid this, therefore there is a 
possibility that installation of impact protection will not be achieved 
without restricting access. This would differentially negatively affect 
disabled people.  

Requirement for charge points to be added to the National Charge 
point Registry (NCR) will mean that information about the charge 
point will be available to the public through third parties. This will 
help people to make decisions about which charge point to use based 
on the information about the charge point included in the NCR. 
Disabled people and older people would find this particularly 
beneficial as they will be able to access information about whether 
particular charge points are accessible (whilst all should be, there 
may be reasons why it’s not and this information helps inform 
customers).  

 

Older people are less likely to utilise information available on a 
smartphone app to inform them of any issues related to the 
maintenance of charge points and are therefore less likely to have 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 93



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue  | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 24 
 

Accessibility  
Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential negative equality effects 

information to hand prior to traveling to a particular charge point. 
The regular maintenance of charge points is therefore 
disproportionately beneficial to this group where it ensures access is 
maintained.   

Effective customer support is important for everyone, but particularly 
for those who may be more likely to experience difficulties at charge 
points, such as those who have accessibility or language needs. This 
would be positive for disabled people, older people (who are more 
likely to struggle with technology) and those for whom English or 
Welsh is not their first language (and need additional support in 
either of these languages). Customer support will also be positive for 
those people such as women and transgender people who may be 
more likely to feel vulnerable if they need help in isolated locations 
due to an issue with a charge point.   

 

Preferred Network Consideration of WIMD data within the preferred network modelling 
means that economically disadvantaged communities have been 
factored into the distribution of EV charging points. This means that 
whilst demand may not be currently there, and therefore would not 
present as commercially attractive to Charge Point Operators and 
Distribution Network Operators, such locations are not ignored and 
provision will be made for inevitable future demand.  

People from economically deprived areas are more likely to have older 
electric vehicles or second-hand EV (as the market develops). This 
means that efficacy of the battery will be diminished, and more 
frequent charging will be required. This requirement should be 
modelled within the preferred network.  

Deliverability Plan None identified None identified 
 

T
udalen y pecyn 94



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 25 
 

Table 6 Equality effects identified in relation to affordability 

Affordability 

Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential adverse equality effects  
Electric Vehicle charging 
Strategy – Facilitating the 
transition to net zero 

Where community led and not for profit initiatives are involved in 
provision of EV charging infrastructure this is likely to bring 
positive effects to economically disadvantaged areas, which would 
benefit most. There are often disproportionate numbers of people 
with protected characteristics in areas of economic disadvantage 
who would therefore benefit.  

Economic development as a result of EV infrastructure, such as 
attracting new businesses and innovation, may not be equally distributed, 
resulting in the potential for some communities to be left behind in terms 
of these economic benefits in their areas. This would result in further 
economic differentiation between more economically deprived areas of 
Wales and richer areas.  

  Electricity rates are currently higher in on-street charging locations 
resulting in differentially higher costs for people without access to off-
street (home) charging. Home charging is less likely to be a viable option 
for people in socially disadvantaged neighbourhoods as well as for those 
people who do not own their own home.  

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Strategy – Action Plan 

The commitment to support local needs through funding decisions 
would bring positive effects for all protected characteristic groups 
as their needs in the local area would be accounted for in the 
planning and provision of EV charging infrastructure.  

 

Encouraging investment and innovation within local communities 
would benefit people living in economically disadvantaged areas, 
particularly where wider benefits are realised such as training and 
induced economic development and innovation.  

 

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure in Wales – 
National Standards 

Additional guidance mentioned in the National Standards (but with 
limited details) includes the need to plan for micromobility (e.g. e-
bikes, e-scooters, e-skateboards) which would benefit people who 
do not have access to electric vehicles (more likely in economically 
disadvantaged communities). This would provide opportunities for 
people to access alternative sustainable transport more readily. 

 

Open payment mechanism is to be used on charge points which 
does not require a membership or subscription. This will be positive 
for those who do not wish to sign up to such 
memberships/subscriptions or who find such requirements 
confusing or costly. This would disproportionately benefit older 
people, and economically disadvantaged people.  

There is no requirement for cash payments to be an option which could 
be a disadvantage for some groups. Whilst it is unlikely that someone 
who has an EV does not have access to a bank account and payment 
card, there are some people who feel anxious using this method without 
strong assurances around security of payment.  

 Use of a single payment metric will provide transparency and be 
easier for people to understand and compare tariffs across the 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 95



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 26 
 

Affordability 

Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential adverse equality effects 
network. This will reduce anxiety related to understanding how 
much a charge is likely to cost and will be differentially beneficial 
for people experiencing economic disadvantage who are more 
likely to be concerned about how much a charge event will cost 
them.  

Preferred Network None identified None identified 

Deliverability Plan None identified None identified 
 
 
Table 7 Equality effects identified in relation to safety 

Safety 

Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential negative equality effects  
Electric Vehicle charging 
Strategy – Facilitating the 
transition to net zero 

Improving elements of design such as lighting would have positive 
effects for disabled people as well as women, pregnant women, 
young people, older people, and transgender people who are more 
likely to feel unsafe in unlit (or poorly lit), isolated spaces. 

 

Improving design so that EV charging infrastructure is easier to use 
(e.g. through supporting some of the weight of the cables, having 
cables at lower heights, preventing cables from dragging on the 
floor and having payment points at heights that do not require over 
stretching) will result in use of charging cables being safer to use 
for people with mobility difficulties, lower than average strength, 
older people, or people who are shorter than average height.  

 

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Strategy – Action Plan 

Refer to National Standards effects Refer to National Standards effects 

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure in Wales – 
National Standards 

The requirement for charging locations to be sufficiently lit 
provides security and safety for users such as disable people, 
women, pregnant women, young people, older people, and 
transgender people who may be more likely to feel unsafe in unlit 
(or poorly lit) spaces.  

If lighting is not designed to be inclusive, it may not result in improved 
safety or ease of use for users of charging points. For example, if lighting 
results in glare on payment screens from particular angles, this could 
lead to wheelchair users being unable to see the screens properly. 
Insufficient lighting could also result in people feeling unsafe by creating 
shadows which could be perceived as threatening. Whether this is a 
perceived threat or real, it would impact on the experience and sense of 

T
udalen y pecyn 96



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 27 
 

 

 

Safety 

Element of portfolio Potential positive equality effects Potential negative equality effects 
safety of users, particularly those who may be more likely to feel 
vulnerable.  

 Desirable characteristics (but not required) for charge points is that 
they are close to amenities such as shops, cafes, supermarkets and 
toilets to improve feelings of a safe environment. This would 
differentially benefit protected characteristic groups, particularly 
disabled people, women, older people and transgender people, all of 
whom may be more likely to have feelings of being unsafe in 
unfamiliar surroundings.  
Whilst this is identified as a benefit to feelings of safety within the 
National Standards it also brings benefits for people who find 
walking/wheeling long distances to amenities difficult and therefore 
values closeness of amenities. This includes older people and 
disabled people. 

Lighting is only identified as being desirable to be operational 
throughout the night. The absence of lighting would differentially 
negatively affect protected characteristic groups who may be more likely 
to feel vulnerable using charging points at night without lighting. This 
includes disabled people, women, older people and transgender people 
who may be more likely to feel unsafe in unlit and unfamiliar 
surroundings.  

 The requirements to maintain charge points to promote positive 
user experience will be disproportionately positive for disabled 
people and older people who are more likely to rely on familiar 
charge points and need to have confidence that they are continually 
well maintained. Where charge points are not well maintained, 
these groups are likely to be the first group who would struggle to 
continue using them, e.g. if the ground surrounding the charge point 
becomes uneven, wheelchair users and older people would be the 
first group of people to be disadvantaged by this as a result of 
making access more difficult (i.e. making it harder to use 
wheelchairs and being a potential trip hazard).  
People who live in economically disadvantaged communities would 
also benefit disproportionately as sites in economically 
disadvantage areas may be more likely to be damaged through 
vandalism or misuse than in other areas and therefore likely to 
require more maintenance.  

 

Preferred Network None identified None identified 

Deliverability Plan None identified None identified 

T
udalen y pecyn 97



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 28 
 

7. Recommendations and action plan 

Table 8 sets out specific recommendations that should be considered now to address the potential adverse equality effects identified in the assessment, and to secure 
and enhance the potential positive effects for protected characteristic groups and for groups experiencing socio-economic disadvantage. All of these actions would 
contribute towards reducing or removing potential adverse equality effects, strengthen potential positive equality effects and help to ensure that, where possible, the 
strategy promotes equality of opportunity.  The outcome of the EqIA will be used to develop guidance for future use when designing specific charge points and 
surrounding ‘service areas’. 

All actions are recommended to be carried out. However, where these are of particular priority, these are identified in the table.  
Table 8 Recommended actions 

EV charging 
action/ 
component 

Recommended action Responsibility  Timescale Priority 
action? 

Part of EV charging portfolio implementation it applies 
to 

EV 
Strategy  

EV 
Action 
plan  

National 
standards 

Preferred 
network 

Deliverability 
plan 

Collaborative 
working 
 
(Governance)  

Ensure that the Charge Point Operator working 
group includes representatives from 
groups/individuals representing protected 
characteristic groups. This will help to capture as 
wide a range of views and needs as possible.  

Welsh 
Government 
(WG) 

Q2 2023 

x x x   x 

Local needs assessments (identifying local EV 
requirements) should be done in consultation with 
local businesses and local community groups. This 
should include representatives from protected 
characteristic groups.  

Local 
Authorities 
with support 
from 
WG/TfW 

On 
preparation 
of a local 
needs 
assessment 

x  x x  x 

Availability of 
information 
 
(design) 

Information that is provided about charge points and 
electric vehicles in general should be provided in 
accessible formats and distributed appropriately and 
equally to all communities. This may require 
different approaches being required in different 
locations with different formats (e.g. digital and 
non-digital).  

Charge Point 
Operators 
(CPOs) 

On 
installation 
of a charge 
point x  x x  x 

T
udalen y pecyn 98



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 29 
 

EV charging 
action/ 
component 

Recommended action Responsibility  Timescale Priority 
action? 

Part of EV charging portfolio implementation it applies 
to 

EV 
Strategy  

EV 
Action 
plan  

National 
standards 

Preferred 
network 

Deliverability 
plan 

Signage – 
Welsh/English 
 
(design) 

Signs must be designed consistently and clearly to 
avoid confusion and delay in comprehension for 
those who do not speak Welsh and find multiple 
languages on one sign confusing. Consider having 
different colours or fonts to distinguish between 
languages to aid quick referencing when driving.  

CPOs On 
installation 
of a charge 
point    x x  x 

Signage – 
design 
 
(design/ 
governance) 

Promote the standard signage designs to EV owners 
(e.g. when they purchase an EV) to make sure that 
everyone is familiar with it and understands what it 
means. Without this communication, it is possible 
that people do not recognise the intended meaning 
and/or lead to a lack of confidence in accessing 
charging infrastructure.  

CPOs 

Vehicle sales 
operators/ 
TfW service 
desk 

On 
installation 
of charge 
points/ at 
point of 
vehicle 
purchase 

 

 x x  x 

OZEV EV 
charging 
regulations 
 
(governance)  

The Welsh National Standards will meet (or be 
more ambitious than) the UK Regulations (which is 
positive), but care should be taken to make sure that 
variations in Wales do not disadvantage people with 
protected characteristics or who are economically 
disadvantaged, e.g. CPO charging more in Wales 
per unit of electricity than in England.  

WG? DNO? Ongoing 
review of 
alignment 

 

  x  x 

Consideration of how to make on-street charging 
equitable in cost to home-charging is required. This 
would make charging costs more equitable across 
society.  

WG (but 
controlled by 
UK 
Government) 

2023 

x     x 

Range of 
charge 
 
(modelling) 

The second-hand market of EVs will make 
ownership of EVs more financially accessible 
(particularly for people who experience economic 
disadvantage). However, range of older batteries is 
lower which means they will need to be charged 

WG/CPOs 2023 

    x x 

T
udalen y pecyn 99



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 30 
 

EV charging 
action/ 
component 

Recommended action Responsibility  Timescale Priority 
action? 

Part of EV charging portfolio implementation it applies 
to 

EV 
Strategy  

EV 
Action 
plan  

National 
standards 

Preferred 
network 

Deliverability 
plan 

more frequently. This future lower range capacity 
should be accounted for within modelling 
predictions.  

Charge point 
co-location 
with amenities  
 
(Modelling/ 
design) 

When locating charge points close to amenities a 
review should be carried out to make sure that these 
amenities are accessible to people with protected 
characteristics, particularly older people and 
disabled people. Additional weighting should be 
given to amenities that have a high patronage from 
people with protected characteristics (e.g. health 
centres, community halls, education facilities). 
Moreover, those charge points which are built with 
new amenities (e.g. cafes, community spaces) 
should ensure the new amenities are responding to 
local need and not leading to displacement. 

This added ‘social value’ component of delivering 
charge points should be integrated into the 
Deliverability Plan. There should be an option for 
phased delivery of these wider social values to 
account for any additional costs that result.  

CPOs Ongoing  

x  x x  x 

Integrate EV 
charging 
infrastructure 
with other 
sustainable 
transport 
options 
 
(governance)  

Future proof EV infrastructure to allow for charging 
of public transport, active transport (e-
micromobility) and car share schemes. Whilst these 
areas are still in their infancy, planning for equitable 
access of these charging options should be 
maintained. 

WG/TfW Ongoing 

x x x x x x 

T
udalen y pecyn 100



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 31 
 

EV charging 
action/ 
component 

Recommended action Responsibility  Timescale Priority 
action? 

Part of EV charging portfolio implementation it applies 
to 

EV 
Strategy  

EV 
Action 
plan  

National 
standards 

Preferred 
network 

Deliverability 
plan 

Dropped kerbs 
 
(design) 

Include design requirements that prevent dropped 
kerbs from being blocked by parked vehicles or 
street furniture.  

WG / TfW 2023 
x  x x  x 

Impact 
protection 
 
(Design/govern
ance) 

Design guidance should be provided in relation to 
impact protection in order to prevent creating access 
restrictions for wheelchair users and people using 
mobility aids.  

WG / TfW 2023 

x  x x  x 

Lighting 
 
(design) 

Lighting should be designed to be inclusive (e.g. to 
avoid glare on payment screens from lower angles) 
and to not inadvertently create insufficiently lit 
environments that generate feelings of being unsafe.   

WG / TfW 2023 

x  x x  x 

Shelter 
provision 
 
(Design) 

It is recommended that options for providing 
covered charge points at some locations are 
explored (which could include solar canopies). This 
would improve user experience for everyone, but 
particularly wheelchair users, older people and those 
who use mobility aids. This would be more 
applicable in locations where there is no option of 
other amenities that could be utilised during the 
period of charging.  

Consideration should be given to how the planning 
approval process could be used to maintain 
standards and encourage the use of canopies. 

WG / TfW 2023 

  x x   

Location close 
to amenities 
 
(Governance) 

The decision to locate EV charging infrastructure 
close to amenities such as shops and cafes is 
recommended. However, where this is not possible, 
consideration should be given to providing rapid 
chargers. This is especially the case in rural 

WG/CPOs/ 
DNO 

2023 - 
ongoing 

   x x x 

T
udalen y pecyn 101



Welsh Government EV Strategy  
 

Issue | ver03 | 11 April 2023 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Equality Impact Assessment Page 32 
 

EV charging 
action/ 
component 

Recommended action Responsibility  Timescale Priority 
action? 

Part of EV charging portfolio implementation it applies 
to 

EV 
Strategy  

EV 
Action 
plan  

National 
standards 

Preferred 
network 

Deliverability 
plan 

locations where people would be potentially isolated 
with nowhere to wait for long periods of time. 
Different requirements in rural areas needs to be 
considered.  

Health equity Health equity of EV charging infrastructure has not 
currently been considered. For example, 
economically disadvantaged areas are generally 
disproportionately affected by higher air pollution 
than affluent areas. Increased uptake of EVs, 
alongside associated charging infrastructure, will 
result in improved air quality, therefore if EVs are 
predominantly being owned by people in affluent 
areas, health impacts from poor air quality will 
continue to disproportionately affect economically 
disadvantaged communities who do not own EVs.    

WG 2023 - 
Ongoing 

 x   x  

 

7.1 Future reviews of EqIA 
The various elements of the EV portfolio will evolve over time as the market can, and does, change quickly. The EqIA should be reviewed and updated to mirror any 
changes within the portfolio. It is anticipated that this would be required, but not limited to, the following dates: 

• 2024: To align with the start of regular review and update of the phased programme of interventions in order to establish whether any equality issues begin 
to arise and need to be mitigated.  

• 2030: The EV Charging Infrastructure Strategy covers the period up to 2030, therefore a review of the equality impacts that have been lived as the charging 
network rapidly expands up to this point would be helpful. 2030 also represents the date that introduces the ban on new wholly diesel and petrol car sales 
which may result in shifts in the market that lead to equality impacts. Whilst these kinds of changes have been anticipated in this assessment, there may be 
different opinions, lived experiences or new issues revealed over the next few years which would be captured by a review of the EqIA.  

 

T
udalen y pecyn 102



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Programme
Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and 
Management Cases

Welsh Government

Executive Summary

Final Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023

T
udalen y pecyn 103



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 2

Reliance on Our Advice and Reports

This report is produced to the Strategic Outline Business case (SOBC) level, the scoping stage.  At this 
stage the costs and affordability figures are indicative only.
This report and the capital expenditure (CAPEX) estimate results included in the Financial Case (the 
Results) has been prepared by Arup specifically for and under the instructions and requirements of 
Welsh Government in connection with the Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales, 
under the Schedule 2b contract dated 28 February 2022.
This report is prepared for use and reliance by our client only. No third party is entitled to rely on this 
report. We do not in any circumstances accept any duty, responsibility or liability to any third party 
whatsoever (including retail investors whether by bond issue or otherwise) who has relied on this report. 
Accordingly, we disclaim all liability of whatever nature (including in negligence) to any third party 
other than to our client.
In preparing this report we have relied on information provided by others and we do not accept 
responsibility for the content, including the accuracy and completeness, of such information. In no 
circumstances do we accept liability in relation to information used by us which has been provided by 
others.
The Results have been developed using data and assumptions from various sources - including Arup 
benchmarks and information provided by others. Where possible, Arup has sought to establish the 
reasonability of the assumptions used and has, where possible, referenced sources. However, we have not 
tested the reliability of the data or verified the source of information so provided. Accordingly no 
representation or warranty of any kind (whether express or implied) is given by Arup as to the internal 
consistency or accuracy of the Results nor any output from them. Moreover the Results do not absolve 
any recipient from conducting its own audit in order to verify its functionality and/or performance. 
We emphasise that the forward-looking projections, forecasts, or estimates are based upon interpretations 
or assessments of available information at the time of writing. The realisation of the prospective financial 
information is dependent upon the continued validity of the assumptions on which it is based. Actual 
events frequently do not occur as expected, and the differences may be material. For this reason, we 

accept no responsibility for the realisation of any projection, forecast, opinion or estimate.
Arup accepts no duty of care to any person for the development of these model Results, their use, nor in 
respect of any output from them. Accordingly, regardless of the form of action, whether in contract, tort 
or otherwise, and to the extent permitted by applicable law, Arup accepts no liability of any kind and 
disclaims all responsibility for the consequences of any person acting or refraining from acting in reliance 
on the Results and/or outputs for any decisions made or not made which are based upon such Results 
and/or output.
Findings are time-sensitive and relevant only to current conditions at the time of writing. We will not be 
under any obligation to update the report to address changes in facts or circumstances that occur after the 
date of our report that might materially affect the contents of the report or any of the conclusions set forth 
therein.
No person other than our client and any party to who reliance has been expressly permitted by us may 
copy (in whole or in part), use the contents of this report without our prior written permission. Any 
copying or use of this report (in whole or in part) by any party whatsoever shall be accompanied by or 
incorporate this notice at all times.
We accept no responsibility for, and have not authorised, the contents of any report, prospectus, 
supplementary prospectus, listing particulars, supplementary listing particulars, presentation or other 
document or communication in respect of the sale, acquisition, offering or transfer of any shares or 
securities or interest in them, whether on the primary or secondary market or otherwise, which uses, 
includes or incorporates any report, deliverable or information, or any element thereof, prepared by us 
under or in connection with this agreement.

T
udalen y pecyn 104



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 3

Glossary of terms

AIE The European Association of Electrical Contractors

CE Consumer Efficiency (demand scenario)

CP Chargepoint

CPO Charge point operator

DfT Department for Transport

DNOs Distribution Network Operators

ESG Environmental, Social, and Governance

EVCI Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure

EV Electric Vehicle

GS Government on-Street (demand scenario)

LA Local Authority

LSOAs Lower Super Output Areas

MSOAs Middle Super Output Areas

OEM Original Equipment Manufacturer

RD Rapid Dominant (demand scenario)

SOBC Strategic Outline Business Case

TfL Transport for London

TfW Transport for Wales

Tx Transformation

ULEVs Ultra Low Emission Vehicles

WelTAG Welsh Transport Appraisal Guidance

WG Welsh Government

WLGA Welsh Local Government Association

T
udalen y pecyn 105



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 4

Executive summary

T
udalen y pecyn 106



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 5

Introduction and context

T
udalen y pecyn 107



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 6

Executive summary

Purpose of this document

In 2021, Welsh Government launched the Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales (the Strategy), which 
sets out the vision for electric vehicle charging in Wales, outlining the current context, future charging needs, and 
how these can be met. 
Welsh Government (WG) commissioned Arup to produce the three cases relevant to the deliverability of the 
Strategy to the Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) level, for the Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure 
(EVCI) Programme for Wales:
• The commercial case introduces key aspects of the charging market – including the EV charging value chain 

and a spectrum of potential business models. The case presents the results of a capability and capacity 
assessment of the public sector, capturing: existing and aspirational capability to deliver the Strategy, the roles 
to be played by different bodies in that delivery, barriers to strategy roll-out and interventions to overcome, 
and plans for engagement with the private sector.

• The financial case focuses on the total capital costs of the EV charging infrastructure roll-out required to 
meet future EV demand projections. The financial case presents a high-level estimate of the range of total 
capital cost of installing all on-route and destination charging infrastructure in Wales, agnostic of which body 
(whether public or private sector) is taking financial responsibility.

• The management case explores how the programme will be overseen, managed and delivered in the next 
phase, and subsequently. By defining and putting in the place the necessary management plans in place, such 
as programme management and risks management, this provides the reassurances the programme is 
achievable and that WG, Transport for Wales (TfW) and other delivery partners have the capacity to deliver 
the programme, which in this case, is the EV Charging Infrastructure for Wales Strategy.

The development of the three cases above are aligned with HM Treasury’s Green Book and the Welsh Transport 
Appraisal Guidance (WelTAG). 

Figure 1: Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales
Source: Welsh Government, 2021

The purpose of this report is to explore how the Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales and accompanying Action Plan will be delivered in practice, to be referred to as the Electric Vehicle 
Charging Infrastructure Programme, as WG sets out to accelerate the roll-out of electric vehicle charging infrastructure across Wales. This report has been prepared for Welsh Government. 

Introduction

T
udalen y pecyn 108



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 7

Executive summary
The EV market today

Wales currently has fewer EVs, and fewer chargepoints than other parts of the UK

There are 1,310 public CPs installed in Wales, 
with eight battery electric vehicles (BEVs) or 
thirteen plug-in vehicles (BEVs, plug-in hybrids, 
other) per CP. 3.7% of public UK CPs are 
installed in Wales, where 2.2% of BEVs and 2.1% 
of all EVs are licensed. 

Among UK regions, Wales ranks 10th in number 
of installed CPs, 2nd in CPs per licensed BEV, 3rd 
in CPs per licensed EV (BEVs and others), 6th in 
CPs per capita, and 10th in EVs per capita (out of 
12 major UK regions). Lower levels of public 
changing infrastructure can have a dampening 
effect on EV uptake.

Figure 2: UK public chargepoints by region
Source: ZapMap August 2022

Figure 3: UK battery electric vehicles (BEVs) by region
Source: DfT, 2022

Wales currently has a relatively low level of EV uptake per capita, compared to other regions of the UK. 
Installed charging infrastructure is also low, especially for On-Route rapid and ultra-rapid charging, 
creating gaps in the minimum viable network of charging required for longer trips.

Less infrastructure More Infrastructure

11% 

22% 

6% 7% 

15% 

8% 
11% 

7% 
5% 

2% 2% 1% N/A N/A 
-

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

-
20
40
60
80

100
120

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n

 S
ou

th
 E

as
t

 S
co

tla
d

 W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t

 E
as

t o
f E

ng
la

nd

 N
or

th
 W

es
t

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
 a

nd
th

e 
H

um
be

r

 E
as

t M
id

la
nd

s

 W
al

es

 N
or

th
 E

as
t

 N
or

th
er

n 
Ire

la
nd

 C
ha

nn
el

 Is
la

nd
s

 Is
le

 o
f M

an

%
 o

f B
EV

s 
in

 U
K

Li
ce

ns
ed

 B
EV

s

BEVs /capita % of UK

KEY:

# CPs # BEVs /CP # EVs /CP # People /CP # People /EV 

Greater London  11,272 5 9 799 91 

South East  4,606 24 40 2,001 50 

Scotland  3,562 8 14 1,535 110 

West Midlands  2,617 14 22 2,278 105 

South West  2,438 30 46 2,321 50 

East of England  2,303 17 35 2,722 77 

North West  2,253 24 46 3,270 71 

Yorkshire and the Humber  1,952 18 32 2,831 89 

East Midlands  1,847 13 23 2,634 112 

Wales  1,310 8 13 2,420 183 

North East  1,069 8 12 2,508 203 

Northern Ireland  352 17 29 5,385 184 

32% 

13% 
10% 

7% 7% 6% 6% 5% 5% 4% 3% 1% 0% 0% 
-
2
4
6
8

10
12

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n

 S
ou

th
 E

as
t

 S
co

tla
d

 W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t

 E
as

t o
f E

ng
la

nd

 N
or

th
 W

es
t

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
 a

nd
th

e 
H

um
be

r

 E
as

t M
id

la
nd

s

 W
al

es

 N
or

th
 E

as
t

 N
or

th
er

n 
Ire

la
nd

 C
ha

nn
el

 Is
la

nd
s

 Is
le

 o
f M

an

C
ha

rg
ep

oi
nt

s 
('0

00
s)

T
udalen y pecyn 109



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 8

Executive summary

Based on Arup modelling, to fulfil demand, the projected number of 
fast chargers needed across Wales will reach around 34,000 chargers 
by 2030. As of August 2022, Wales currently has l.2% of this total 
installed. Furthermore, around 4,000 rapid chargers are projected to 
be needed by 2030, with 1.7% of this total installed so far.
DfT statistics currently show the growth of the number of licensed 
EVs in Wales is outpacing the growth of publicly-available chargers 
by a factor of almost three. Between October 2019 and July 2022, the 
number of licensed EVs increased by 305%, yet the number of 
publicly-owned chargers increased by 125%.
Key strategy elements include encouraging transport decarbonisation, 
delivering at high standards, and equality of coverage and access. 
Given the impending 2030 ban on new wholly diesel and petrol car 
sales, the pace of delivery will need to accelerate significantly if the 
WG is to deliver sufficient and equitable accessibility to a CP across 
Wales, as per the Strategy.
As such, continuing with current trends and levels of intervention is 
highly unlikely to be enough to deliver the charging infrastructure 
needed to meet current and future demand. 

The EV market: future development and challenges

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

O
ct

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

Ap
r-2

0

Ju
l-2

0

O
ct

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

Ap
r-2

1

Ju
l-2

1

O
ct

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

In
de

x 
(1

00
 =

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

9)

No. of chargers

No of EVs

Figure 4: No. of EV chargers vs no. of licensed EVs in Wales (base index = 2019)
Source: DfT, as of October 2022

The current pace of EV charging roll-out in Wales is too slow and government intervention is needed to achieve the aims of the Strategy

EV ownership
+ 305% growth since 

Oct 2019

EV chargers
+ 125% growth since 

Oct 2019

T
udalen y pecyn 110



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 9

Key findings of the commercial, financial and management cases

T
udalen y pecyn 111



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 10

Opportunity Type: Key Take-Aways
Sites Developed 
on Private Land 
by Private CPOs

Sites Developed 
in PPP on Private 

Land

Sites Developed 
on Public Land 

by Private CPOs

Sites Developed 
in PPP on Public 

Land

Sites Developed 
on Public Land 

by Public Sector

Policy Intervention
The Welsh Government’s main role across all opportunities lies in policy-based interventions 

that remove barriers, promote decarbonisation, and incentivise investment. These policy 
interventions can support both the private sector and other public sector bodies.     

Subsidy / auction / 
franchise

Out of all Welsh public sector bodies, the Welsh Government has the most capacity – skill and 
resource – to financially intervene. This should be considered on a case-by case basis, with 

specific and targeted beneficiaries, with a special focus on closing equality gaps.

Consider on a case-by-case basis where equality gaps emerge – all 
financial intervention should be targeted (specific sites, capex types, or 

areas) and balanced against other public needs.

Access to grants can help Local Authorities 
capture local opportunities.

Plan and lease / 
licence

On publicly-owned land that is well suited to EV charging, public sector delivery entities (TfW 
and Local Authorities) could plan sites and lease them out to private CPOs. The public sector 

could also offer planning support to private investors to help de-risk and incentivise.

Planning support can be offered by the public 
sector to help de-risk private investment   

Develop and lease / 
licence

On publicly-owned land that is well suited to EV charging, public sector delivery entities (TfW 
and Local Authorities) could plan sites and develop sites, then lease them out to private 

CPOs. This option is more capital intensive, with not much public sector capability.     

Low-control JV
In a low-control JV, public sector delivery entities could have a degree of control over charging 

outcomes at the site, without taking on the full investment risk (however, still facing demand 
risk). Operations should largely be outsourced to private CPOs.     

High-control JV
In a high-control JV, a private sector partner would likely expect significant public sector 
investment, and the public sector would face demand risk. Operations should largely be 

outsourced to private CPOs, but the public sector could offer support (e.g., user experience).     
Own and appoint 
operator

The private sector could retain full ownership of a charging site on suitable public land and 
outsourcing site operations to a private sector CPO. This would require significant capital 

investment and full exposure to demand risk.     

Own and operate
Arup does not recommend this option to be deployed on a wide-scale basis, as it is in conflict 

with the Welsh Government’s low appetite for operational risk. Select opportunities –
especially in the On-Route network could be owned and operated by TfW.     

Executive summary
Key findings of the Strategic Outline Business Case: commercial, financial and management cases

Commercial case [1/2]
Arup expects that the majority of charging will be delivered and funded by the private sector; however, where private sector roll-out would lead to opportunity gaps in the WG strategy, 
Arup recommends considering intervention through policy, selected subsidies, plans and developments.  WG has a choice about the areas of the value chain in which to intervene, the role 
it will play and the funding or benefits funding it will provide – these should be considered on a case-by-case basis.

B

A

A

B

C

C

*

A

 Emerging recommendation
 Potential pathway
 Not recommended
 Not applicable

T
udalen y pecyn 112



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 11

Executive summary

Commercial case [2/2]

Capability of the public sector
Public sector capability is strongest in planning, finance, power supply, and contract management 
activities. Significant gaps exist in public sector site design, CP installation and civils, operation, and 
maintenance capability.
Next Steps:
1. Roles across the Public Sector
Roles of the public sector should include:
• Welsh Government – oversight and socialisation of the EV charging strategy, setting standards, 

monitoring strategy progress, policy intervention, and financial intervention.
• Transport for Wales – delivering and monitoring the strategy at On-Route sites and rail station car 

parks, and providing delivery support to LAs and Welsh Government.
• Local Authorities – delivering and monitoring the strategy locally, at destinations and on-street, with 

support from TfW.
2. Engagement with the private sector
To understand the size and scope required public sector intervention, further engagement with the private 
sector is required. How much infrastructure will the public sector roll out? Where will this be located and 
who will it serve?
3. Prioritisation of Delivery
Arup recommends that two elements of the delivery strategy be prioritised first (before moving on to 
others): the on-route network and destination /on-street charging in built-up areas. These elements 
will have the most short-term benefit for users in Wales, providing a strong cross-national network and 
catering to users who have a greater need for public charging.

4. Approach to Intervention
There is no “one size fits all” business model or approach to public sector intervention. Different locations, 
modes, and sites will require different amounts and types of intervention. The table opposite outlines key 
take-aways from Arup’s emerging recommendations around business models to be employed on a targeted 
basis. Arup recommends that procurement take into account steps to mitigate identified barriers to strategy 
implementation – including flexible procurement, and larger opportunities and longer contractual terms 
that reflect the appetite of the private sector.

Next steps should include socialising the EV charging strategy, engaging with the private sector and tailoring the approach to intervention. 

Key findings of the Strategic Outline Business Case: commercial, financial and management cases

T
udalen y pecyn 113



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 12

Executive summary

Financial case

Figure 5: Total capex (£ million , range of results): on-route

Figure 6: Total capex (£ million , range of results): destination

The financial case suggests a total capex cost of between £351 to £1,550m for On-Route and Destination charging by 2040. This analysis is 
agnostic of which body is taking financial responsibility.

-
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050

£ 
m

illi
on

 T
ot

al
 C

ap
ex

 (r
an

ge
)

Central case results

Range of min to max results (sensitivities applied to Central Case demand)

Range of min to max results (sensitivities applied to all demand scenarios)

Financial case modelling
The financial case presents a high-level estimate of the cost of 
installing all On-Route and Destination charging infrastructure in 
Wales, agnostic of what body is taking financial responsibility. The 
case includes on On-Route and Destination charging only.  Capital 
costs include grid connection and substation costs, equipment supply 
and installation, planning, and civils. The range of results is wide 
because of uncertainties inherent to the development of the EV 
charging market – in terms of EV uptake, total demand, user 
behaviour, and both location and speed of charging
From the minimum to maximum range across all scenarios and 
sensitivities, capex reaches £351 to 1,550 million by 2040, with no 
growth after that point, with £114 to 689 million spent on On-Route 
charging and £236 to 861 million on Destination charging. By this 
point On-Route chargepoints number 1.1 to 6.5 thousand and 
Destination 6.4 to 61.8 thousand, with a total of  7.4 to 68.4 
thousand. Charging capacity reaches 141 to 1,165 MW, spread across 
968 to 23,500 sites.

Legend:

Next Steps
We recommend the following next steps:
1. Refine the range of results: consider location-specific costs, like 

grid connection; excluded costs, like land and opex; and evaluate 
LSOA-level demand and indicative costs.

2. Engage with the private sector to understand plans: form a 
view of private sector roll-out that will happen without 
intervention to identify gaps; collaborate with the private sector to 
align investment to the preferred network.

3. Determine the phasing of roll-out: prioritise intervention in the 
on-route network and public local charging in built up areas; 
evaluate the effects of roll-out phasing on public and private 
financial investment into public charging.

4. Determine the size & scope of the funding envelope: once the 
range of results, private sector engagement, and phasing have 
been considered, determine the size of the government funding 
envelope – how much is the public sector willing to invest? What 
non-financial actions could be taken to reduce the need for 
financial intervention? In what aspects of the public charging 
value chain is the government willing to invest?

5. Explore options for financing: once the public funding envelope 
has been determined, explore the means for financing and detailed 
commercial approach – this might include bundling sites and 
using Financial Transaction Reserve.

Key findings of the Strategic Outline Business Case: commercial, financial and management cases

-
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1,000

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050

£ 
m

illi
on

 T
ot

al
 C

ap
ex

 (r
an

ge
)

T
udalen y pecyn 114



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 13

Executive summary

Management case

The scale and complexity of delivering the EVCI programme necessitates a strong 
and effective management structure which determines how WG and delivery 
partners will deliver and manage the EVCI programme. This is a significant step-
up from the WG resources that are devoted today.  Key findings includes:
• The need for a PMO to manage and deliver the EVCI programme is imperative 

to delivering the preferred network in line with policy objectives. Furthermore, 
portfolios and projects will need to be identified - Figure 7 sets out an 
illustrative example of a proposed EVCI portfolio structure. 

• Governance arrangements needs to be in place to oversee and be clear on 
accountability for the programme, An assurance framework will need to be 
created to provide independent assurance that the programme is meeting the 
intended outcomes, and that programme risks and control issues are managed 
effectively. 

• Monitoring and Evaluation is critical in understanding the progress of the EV 
charging roll-out, and whether policy objectives and KPIs are met.

• A programme risk register and management plan needs to be developed 
within the next six months, identifying key risks as early as possible and 
identify mitigation measures, minimising disruptive impact on the programme.

• A communications and stakeholder engagement plan should be developed 
jointly by WG and TfW, ensuring engagement and messaging is streamlined 
with the private sector and the public, avoiding duplication of efforts between 
different parties, as well as raising public awareness of progress and EV 
charging infrastructure in Wales.

Figure 7: Illustrative example of the proposed EVCI portfolio structure

The management case outlines the key considerations when delivering and managing the programme of interventions needed to facilitate and deliver the preferred network.

Key findings of the Strategic Outline Business Case: commercial, financial and management Cases

EVCI Programme Management Office (PMO)

1. On-route charging 
infrastructure

2. Destination charging 
infrastructure

3. Public and stakeholder 
engagement

Charging on the Strategic 
Trunk Road Network

TfW assets and public 
transport integration

Public Sector Procurement 
Strategy

Energy and grid 
connections taskforce

Welsh Government estate

Public sector programme 
integration 

Portfolio

Programmes

4. Quality, local value and 
supply chain

Quality (including National 
Standards)

Public communications 
engagement

Private sector engagement 
and integration

Innovation, grants and 
funding

Strategic 
gateways/locations/hubs

Skills, education and 
training

National and international 
engagement & shared 

best practice

Policy, planning and 
regulation

Digital, data and 
monitoring

Local supply chain 
readiness

Colocation with strategic 
investment e.g. other 

forms of electric mobility

Cross-cutting portfolios

T
udalen y pecyn 115



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 14

Roadmap for accelerating the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure in Wales

T
udalen y pecyn 116



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 15

Executive summary
Roadmap for accelerating the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure in Wales

Next steps: priorities for Welsh Government and delivery partners

The findings of this report suggests that more work and development is needed to implement the EVCI 
programme in the next phase, harnessing the work done to date (e.g. National Standards, early market 
engagement). To achieve this, a programme-level roadmap has been developed, setting out actions 
across five key priorities for WG and delivery partners for the next 3-5 years, to deliver successful 
acceleration of EV charging infrastructure across Wales, and meet the defined KPIs set by the Strategy. 
The roles and responsibility of WG, TfW, local authorities and the private sector are summarised on the 
right.

Welsh Government – Strategic Oversight and Policy
Oversight of the EV Charging Infrastructure Strategy, setting standards, 
monitoring strategy progress, policy intervention and financial intervention.

Transport for Wales– Delivery Partner
Delivery and monitoring the strategy at the on-route network, providing 
delivery support to local authorities and Welsh Government.

Local Authorities – Delivery Partner
Delivery and monitoring the strategy locally, at destinations and on-street 
sites, with support from Transport for Wales. 

Private Sector– Delivery of the Preferred Network
The private sector will largely install and operate the preferred network, 
public sector intervention is targeted where market failure has been 
identified (e.g. TfW delivering charge-points at commercially unviable on-
route sites).

PS

Role and responsibility

Delivering the preferred network within the required timescales will depend on the joint effort of the public 
and private sector, with the following key players: 

1. Establish a PMO to govern delivery arrangements, set standards and 
monitor progress

2. Provide support and guidance to enable local authorities (and private 
sector) to deliver the preferred network

3. Engagement with the private sector to ensure we optimise the delivery of 
the preferred network and foster public-private sector collaboration

4. Develop the mechanisms, knowledge and tools to deliver the preferred 
network

5. Leverage the resource and mechanisms necessary to rapidly deliver the 
network in line with policy objectives

Roadmap: 5 key priorities

T
udalen y pecyn 117



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 16

Executive summary
Roadmap for accelerating the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure in Wales

Tasks Lead 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1. Establish a PMO to govern delivery arrangements, set standards and monitor 
progress

1.1 Workshop to review all work done to date and identify key gaps and immediate next steps - what 
further consultancy support does WG need for policy strategy development? WG, TfW

1.2 Establishment of a governance structure, including establishing a Transport Decarbonisation 
Governance framework which incorporates EV Charging Delivery. WG

1.3 Set-up a Programme Management Office (PMO), with identified roles and responsibilities TfW, WG
1.4 Develop a Performance management and accountability framework for WG/TfW delivery. WG
1.5 Develop and regularly review and update the phased programme of interventions TfW
1.6 Develop a programme-level risk register and management plan TfW
1.7 Develop a communications and stakeholder engagement plan WG, TfW

1.8 Review and revise the target number of CPs needed across Wales, as future demand projections 
evolve TfW

1.9 Determine the funding requirement (budget) for the next 3-5 years - revisit and refine the range of cost 
results and identify funding sources by the public and private sector WG

2. Providing support and guidance to enable local authorities (and private sector) to 
deliver the preferred network 

2.1 Determine the scale of immediate funding and support local authorities require WG, TfW
2.2 Publish National Standards WG
2.3 Build on the capability exercise and continue to identify capacity and capability gaps TfW
2.4 Develop a support function for local authorities TfW
2.5 Facilitate funding for local authorities via ULEV WG

2.6 Ensure all LAs have EV Charging strategy and ensure they are clear on roles for WG, TfW, Private 
sector and what we want from them. WG

2.7 Engagement with CADW and National Trust to support delivery of CPs at heritage and tourist sites WG

T
udalen y pecyn 118



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 17

Executive summary
Roadmap for accelerating the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure in Wales

Tasks Lead 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

3. Engagement with the private sector to ensure we optimise the delivery of the preferred 
network and foster public-private sector collaboration

3.1 Market engagement with CPOs to understand the private sector's plans and priorities for future 
investment TfW

3.2 Establish a cross interest public and private CP Task & Finish Group WG

3.3 Develop engagement and comms capability with Private Sector. TfW

3.4 Set target for PS delivery, and identify required public sector intervention to complement PS delivery TfW

3.5 Create open access to Datamap Wales to allow private sector to utilise data for infrastructure roll-out WG

3.6 Undertake a supply chain and opportunities review WG

4. Developing the mechanisms, knowledge and tools to deliver the preferred network

4.1
WG to review and establish policy levers and remove barriers to EVCI installation and operations. This 
includes review of regulations to support the provision of home and workplace charging in new builds 
and refurbishments

WG

4.2 Develop funding and financing options, including FTR options WG

4.3 Establish Commercial Procurement Framework - design and delivery WG

4.4 Explore alternative procurement solutions, such as procuring a consortium of private sector partners to 
deliver the preferred network over the next 2-5 years. This could be structured as a Challenge Fund. WG

4.5 Future proofing the grid network - regular engagement with DNOs to ensure current infrastructure can 
serve the preferred network TfW

4.6 Develop and implement communications campaign (target audience: end users, the public), linked to 
Behaviour Change work, to raise awareness of EVs and CP rollout. WG

4.7 Identify locations suitable for renewable generation and energy storage, assisting power provision for 
the charging network WG

T
udalen y pecyn 119



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 18

Executive summary
Roadmap for accelerating the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure in Wales

Tasks Lead 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

5. Leverage the resource and mechanisms necessary to rapidly deliver the network 
in line with policy objectives

5.1 Delivery of the on-route network, with TfW supporting where required (e.g. providing planning 
support and coordination or delivering CPs in commercially unviable sites)

Private Sector, 
TfW

5.2 Delivery of destination and on-street charging in built-up areas, with local authorities supporting 
where required

Private sector, 
LAs

5.3 Monitor progress of the EV charging infrastructure roll-out WG

5.4 Knowledge sharing and applying lessons learnt through regular public-private group engagement WG, TfW

T
udalen y pecyn 120



Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for Wales – Strategic Outline Business Case: Commercial, Financial and Management Cases
Arup report to the Welsh Government

February 2023 19

T
udalen y pecyn 121



 

 

 

 

 

18 May 2023 

Dear Secretary of State, 

The Senedd’s Climate Change, Environment and Infrastructure Committee recently held an evidence 
session with representatives from Tata Steel UK and trade unions representing steelworkers. The 
session arose due to media reports about the ongoing negotiations between the UK Government and 
Tata Steel regarding funding for decarbonisation efforts. During the meeting, Tata and the unions 
raised several matters of concern that warrant your consideration and prompt action. 

Decarbonisation is the most significant challenge the steel industry has seen in a generation. As a 
crucial contributor to the Welsh and UK economies, Tata Steel employs approximately 8,000 
individuals, with 6,000 of them based in Wales. The steel produced at Port Talbot accounts for nearly 
2% of the UK's anthropogenic carbon dioxide emissions and between 15-20% of Wales' carbon 
dioxide emissions. With climate change as the most significant concern facing the planet, addressing 
these emissions is vital.  

The crux of the matter lies in two main areas: direct support for decarbonisation investment and 
competitive energy prices. Tata Steel and the union representatives were unanimous in emphasising 
that the UK Government must address these issues in a manner comparable to the support provided 
by other European governments to their steel industries. Such support is essential to establish a level 
playing field and ensure the continued competitiveness of the UK steel industry.  You will also be 
aware that earlier this month Tata warned that its UK business faces “material uncertainty” due to 
inflation and uncertainty around government support for decarbonisation.  

Tata Steel and the union representatives cited examples of European governments providing 
substantial funding packages to their respective steel industries, including more than €1 billion for 
Salzgitter in Germany, €450 million for ArcelorMittal in Spain, and around €1 billion for ArcelorMittal in 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd,  
yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
— 
Climate Change, Environment,  
and Infrastructure Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddHinsawdd 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddClimate@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddClimate 
0300 200 6565 

The Rt Hon Kemi Badenoch MP, 
Secretary of State for Business and Trade 

Tudalen y pecyn 122

Eitem 4.4

mailto:SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


 

 

France. The UK industry is seeking government support, similar to the assistance provided to its 
European competitors. It is essential that the UK remains competitive and moves with the same 
momentum as its European counterparts.  

Both Tata Steel and union representatives emphasised the importance of competitive electricity prices 
for the steel industry and other sectors. A competitive electricity price is critical for generating 
competitively priced hydrogen, which is essential for the future hydrogen-based economy. Union 
representatives highlighted the longstanding issue of uncompetitive prices in the UK, exacerbated by 
recent geopolitical events. They urged the UK Government to act swiftly, as other countries have 
done, to cap energy prices for industrial consumers, thereby alleviating the pressure on the steel 
industry. 

Addressing these issues is critical for the future of the steel industry, the well-being of the workforce, 
and the overall economic growth of the UK. It is essential that the UK has access to domestically 
produced, green steel. The UK Government must take decisive action to secure the future of the steel 
industry in Wales, and to boost the green industrial revolution.  I would be grateful for an update 
from you on how you intend to address the issues set out in this letter. 

I am copying this letter to The Rt Hon David TC Davies MP, Secretary of State for Wales, Vaughan 
Gething MS, Minister for Economy, Wales and Julie James MS, Minister for Climate Change, Wales. 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
Llyr Gruffydd MS,  
Chair, Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 123



 

 

 

 

 

18 Mai 2023  

 

Annwyl Lywydd, 

Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm Rhif 3) ar y Bil Ffyniantt Bro ac 

Adfywio 

Byddwch yn ymwybodol bod y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai wedi bod yn trafod memoranda 

cydsyniad deddfwriaethol mewn perthynas â’r Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio, a’r ffaith ein bod wedi 

cyhoeddi adrodd ar y memoranda gwreiddiol, diwygiedig ac atodol ar 13 Chwefror.  

Ar 25 Ebrill, cytunodd y Pwyllgor Busnes i'n gwahodd ni, a thri phwyllgor arall, i ystyried 

Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Rhif 3) (“Memorandwm Atodol Rhif 3”)  ac i 

gyflwyno adroddiad erbyn 22 Mai. Cafodd y dyddiad cau ei ymestyn wedyn i 5 Mehefin. 

Cafodd Memorandwm Atodol Rhif 3 ei ystyried gennym yn ein cyfarfod ar 11 MaI a phenderfynwyd 

peidio ag adrodd arno. Yn ein hadroddiad ar y memoranda gwreiddiol, diwygiedig ac atodol, 

dywedasom fod "ein hystyriaeth o’r memoranda yn canolbwyntio ar y darpariaethau o fewn ein cylch 

gwaith yn unig" ac nad oeddem "mewn sefyllfa i wneud argymhelliad ar unrhyw un o’r darpariaethau 

eraill yn y Bil sy’n dod o fewn cymhwysedd deddfwriaethol y Senedd." Mae'r gwelliannau a nodir y 

Memorandwm Atodol Rhif 3 yn ymwneud ag adroddiadau canlyniadau amgylcheddol nad ydynt yn 

dod o fewn cylch gwaith y Pwyllgor. Ar y sail honno, a'r ffaith ei fod wedi cael ei gyfeirio at bwyllgorau 

eraill a allai fod â mwy o ddiddordeb yn y gwelliannau hyn, fe wnaethom benderfynu beidio ag 

adrodd ar y memorandwm y tro hwn.   

Rwy’n anfon copi o’r llythyr hwn at y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad; Pwyllgor yr 

Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig, a’r Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith.  

Yn gywir  

Y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol  
a Thai 
— 
Local Government  
and Housing Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddTai@senedd.cymru 
SeneddTai/SeneddTai  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Senedd Cymru 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddHousing@senedd.wales  

senedd.wales/SeneddHousing 
0300 200 6565 Elin Jones AS  

Y Llywydd 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Busnes 

Tudalen y pecyn 124

Eitem 4.5

https://senedd.cymru/media/25ceu1zo/cr-ld15663-w.pdf


 

 

 

John Griffiths AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai  

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 125



  

 

12 Mai 2023 

Annwyl Gadeiryddion 

Fel y gwyddoch, mae fy Mhwyllgor wedi bod yn cynnal trosolwg o raglen Fframweithiau Cyffredin y 
DU tra bod eich priod bwyllgorau – a phwyllgorau seneddol eraill yn y DU – wedi bod yn cynnal 
gwaith craffu ar fframweithiau unigol. 

Yn ddiweddar, gwnaethom gytuno i wneud argymhellion i Lywodraeth Cymru mewn cysylltiad â 
materion trawsbynciol sy’n deillio o’r gwaith craffu hwn. Rydym wedi gosod ein hadroddiad heddiw, 
ac mae’n cynnwys yr argymhellion hyn. 

At hynny, rydym wedi ceisio dadl yn y Cyfarfod Llawn, er mwyn nodi’r adroddiad, ddydd Mercher 12 
Gorffennaf 2023. Hyderaf y bydd hyn hefyd yn rhoi cyfle i chi – ac aelodau eich pwyllgorau – i dynnu 
sylw at faterion wnaeth ddod i’r amlwg yn sgil eich gwaith craffu ar fframweithiau cyffredin unigol. 

Yn gywir, 

Huw Irranca-Davies 
Cadeirydd 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddDCC@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddDCC 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddLJC@senedd.wales  

senedd.wales/SeneddLJC 
0300 200 6565 

Y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth,  
Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad 
— 
Legislation, Justice and  
Constitution Committee 

Llyr Gruffydd AS 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Paul Davies AS 
Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 

Russell George AS 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

Mark Isherwood AS 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus a Gweinyddiaeth 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 126

Eitem 4.6

https://senedd.cymru/media/15blselt/cr-ld15834-w.pdf


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 127

Eitem 7Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 133

Eitem 8Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru) - tystiolaeth gan y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd: rhan 1
	Canfyddiadau’r arolwg - Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru)

	4.1 Bil yr Amgylchedd (Ansawdd Aer a Seinweddau) (Cymru)
	Ventilation letter to CCEI Committee.pdf
	Open the Window. Why ventilation is important (W).pdf

	4.2 Cynllun Masnachu Allyriadau y DU
	4.3 Gwefru Cerbydau Trydan
	230517_WG_response_EV_charging_e.pdf
	EVCI Strategy - Equality Impact Assessment Report  - Final Issue 14042023.pdf
	Tables
	Figures
	Drawings
	Pictures
	Photographs
	Attachments
	Appendices
	1. Introduction
	1.1 Why is the Welsh Government developing an Electric Vehicle charging portfolio?
	1.2 Purpose of the EqIA
	1.3 Scope of EqIA
	1.3.1 Geographical scope
	1.3.2 Temporal scope

	1.4 Approach to the assessment
	1.5 Consultation

	2. EV charging portfolio
	2.1 Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Facilitating the transition to net zero (March 2021)
	2.2 Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for Wales – Action Plan (October 2021)
	2.3 Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure in Wales – National Standards (Autumn 2022)
	2.4 Preferred network (ongoing)
	2.5 Deliverability Plan

	3. Guidance and standards
	4. Equality impact indicators
	4.1 Accessibility
	4.2 Affordability
	4.3 Safety

	5. Baseline
	5.1 Population and age structure
	5.2 Ethnicity and language
	5.3 Religion and belief
	5.4 Disability
	5.5 Marriage, Civil Partnership and Sexual Orientation
	5.6 Economy and the Labour market
	5.7 Transport and travel
	5.8 Index of multiple deprivation

	6. Assessment of equality impacts
	7. Recommendations and action plan
	7.1 Future reviews of EqIA


	2023-02-16 WG EV SOBC Deliverability Cases_Executive Summary_FINAL.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Reliance on Our Advice and Reports
	Slide Number 3
	Executive summary
	Introduction and context
	Executive summary
	Executive summary
	Slide Number 8
	Key findings of the commercial, financial and management cases
	Executive summary
	Executive summary
	Executive summary
	Executive summary
	Roadmap for accelerating the roll-out of EV charging infrastructure in Wales
	Executive summary
	Executive summary
	Executive summary
	Executive summary
	Slide Number 19


	4.4 Tata Steel - Datgarboneiddio'r diwydiant dur
	4.5 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm Rhif 3) ar gyfer y Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio
	4.6 Fframweithiau cyffredin
	7 Trafod y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol ar y Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio
	8 Trafod yr amserlen arfaethedig ar gyfer Bil Seilwaith (Cymru)



